
Shelton City Council 
Meeting Agenda 

August 20, 2019 at 6:00 p.m. 
Shelton Civic Center 

A. Call to Order
• Pledge of Allegiance
• Roll Call
• Late Changes to the Agenda

B. Council Reports

C. General Public Comment (3-minute time limit)
The City Council invites members of the public to provide comment on any topic at this time. Please sign in on the public comment 
sheet and keep an instruction card.  If you would like to comment on a Business or Action item, please list the agenda item number 
on the list. City Councilmembers and City Staff will not enter into a dialogue during public comment. If the Council feels an issue 
requires follow up, Staff will be directed to respond at an appropriate time.

D. Consent Agenda: (Tab 1) (Action)
1. Voucher number 20933 in the amount of $7,963.50
2. Vouchers numbered 21078 through 21161 in the amount of $406,285.38
3. Payroll Warrants numbered 3970 through 4130 and 3846 through 3847 and 100191 through 100214 in 

the amount of $763,419.24
4. Minutes from the meetings of:

o June 4, 2019
o June 18, 2019

E. Presentations
1. Masonry Institute of Washington – Presented by Zachary Lund (Tab 2)
2. Bluegrass from the Forest LTAC Report – Presented by Duane Wilson
3. Code Enforcement Update – Presented by Chief Darrin Moody

F. Business Agenda (Study/No Action/Public Comment Taken)
1. Rotating Art Gallery – Presented by Community Development Director Mark Ziegler (Tab 3)
2. 2019 Residential Paving Contract & Award – Presented by Public Works Director Craig Gregory (Tab 4)

G. Action Agenda (Action/Public Comment Taken)
1. Resolution No. 1150-0719 Kubota Sole Source Purchase – Presented by Public Works Director

Craig Gregory (Tab 5)
2. OpenGov Software Contract – Presented by City Manager Jeff Niten (Tab 6)

H. General Public Comment (3-minute time limit)

I. Administration Reports
• City Manager Report 



J.  New Items for Discussion 
 
K.  Announcement of Next Meeting – September 3, 2019 at 6:00 p.m. 
 
L.  Adjourn 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The City of Shelton is committed to the non-discriminatory treatment of all persons in employment and the 
delivery of services and resources.  If you require accommodation for your attendance at the City Council 
meeting, please call (360) 432-5103 at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting. 
 



 

Updated 8/12/19 
 

 
2019 Looking Ahead 
    (Items and dates are subject to change) 

 
 

 
Tues. 9/3 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Council 
Meeting 

Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Proclamation 
• 10-year Anniversary of Catalyst Park 

Presentations 
• Master Gardeners 
• LTAC Report – MCHS Museum & Car Show 
• LTAC Report – Chamber of Commerce 
• 2nd Quarter Budget Report 
• Communications Strategy Report 
• Emergency SCADA Update 

Business Agenda                                                              
• Proposed Illumination Plan 

Action Agenda 
• Maintenance Agreement with Washington State 

for Roadway Striping 
• 2019 Residential Paving Contract 

Administration Report 
•  

Packet Items Due: 
Fri. 8/23 

Tues. 9/17 
5:50 p.m. 

Regular SMPD 
Meeting 

Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Meeting Minutes 

Public Hearing – 2020 Preliminary Budget 
Business Agenda 

•  
Action Agenda  

•  
Administration Report 

•  

Packet Items Due: 
Fri. 9/6 
 

Tues. 9/17 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Council 
Meeting 

Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Presentations 
•  Concrete Panel Raising 

Public Hearing – 2020 Preliminary Budget 
Business Agenda 

•  
Action Agenda 

• Proposed Illumination Plan 
Administration Report 

•  

Packet Items Due: 
Fri. 9/6 

Tues. 10/1 
5:00 p.m. 

Special Meeting 
Study Session 

• FCS Group Presentation – Stormwater Rate 
Study 

Packet Items Due: 
Fri. 9/20 



 

Updated 8/12/19 
 

Tues. 10/1 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Council 
Meeting 

Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Presentations 
•   

Business Agenda                                                              
•  

Action Agenda 
• Parking Lot Construction Contract 

Administration Report 
•  

Packet Items Due: 
Fri. 9/20 

Tues. 10/15 
5:50 p.m. 

Special SMPD 
Meeting 

• Public Hearing – 2020 Preliminary Budget & 
Consideration of the 2020 Ad Valorem 
(Property) Tax Levy 

 

Packet Items Due: 
Fri. 10/4 

Tues. 10/15 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Council 
Meeting 

Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Presentations 
•   

Public Hearing – 2020 Preliminary Budget & 
Consideration of the 2020 Ad Valorem (Property) Tax 
Levy 
Business Agenda 

•  
Action Agenda 

•  
Administration Report 
 

Packet Items Due: 
Fri. 10/4 

Tues. 11/5 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Council 
Meeting 

Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Presentations 
•   

Business Agenda                                                              
•  

Action Agenda 
•  

Administration Report 
•  

Packet Items Due: 
Fri. 10/25 

Tues. 11/19 
5:50 p.m. 

Special SMPD 
Meeting 

Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Meeting Minutes 

Business Agenda 
• Budget Ordinance 

Action Agenda  
•  

Administration Report 
 

Packet Items Due:  
Fri. 11/8 

Tues. 11/19 
6:00 p.m. 
(No BR) 

Regular Council 
Meeting 

Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Presentations 
•   

Packet Items Due: 
Fri. 11/8 



 

Updated 8/12/19 
 

Business Agenda                                                              
• Budget Ordinance 

Action Agenda 
•  

Administration Report 
•  

Tues. 12/3 
5:50 p.m. 

Special SMPD 
Meeting 

Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Meeting Minutes 

Business Agenda 
•  

Action Agenda  
• Budget Ordinance 

Administration Report 
 

Packet Items Due: 
Mon. 11/25 @ 
noon 

Tues. 12/3 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Council 
Meeting 

Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Presentations 
•   

Business Agenda                                                              
•  

Action Agenda 
• Budget Ordinance 

Administration Report 
•  

Packet Items Due: 
Mon. 11/25 @ 
noon 

Tues. 12/17 
5:50 p.m. 

Regular SMPD 
Meeting 

Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Meeting Minutes 

Business Agenda 
•  

Action Agenda 
•  

Administration Report 
•  

Packet Items Due: 
Fri. 12/6 

Tues. 12/17 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Council 
Meeting 

Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Presentations 
•   

Business Agenda                                                              
•  

Action Agenda 
•  

Administration Report 
•  

Packet Items Due: 
Fri. 12/6 

Other – TBD 

• UGA/Annexation Policy (Water/Sewer Extensions) 
• Outside City Water/Sewer Extensions 
• More Standing Committees by the Council  



















































































SHELTON WA
CASE STUDY



MASONRY INSTITUTE OF 
WASHINGTON(MIW)

• Located in Seattle, Olympia

• Nonprofit

• What we do?

• Why Shelton?



CASE STUDY 
OUTLINE

Phase 1

• MIW Introduction

• Case Study Zone

• Identify Opportunity

• Current Projects

• August 2019

Phase 2

• Property/Business Profile

• Map Rendering

• Potential Programs

• October2019

Phase 3

• Case Study Written Plan

• Final Rendering

• Recommendations

• December2019



Opportunity locations-Red

Case study focus zone-Yellow

Areas of Focus outside zone-Orange

Alley integration- Green

Click to add text

Case Study Focus Zone



• High traffic intersections

• Anchor business models

• Fresh codes

Business Development



• Building Material

• Tax incentives

• Downtown Corridor investment

Historical Design



• Job Opportunity

• Advantageous to Entrepreneurs 

• Internal Factors

Affordable Change



IMPACTFUL 
ORDINANCES

• Cohesiveness

• Updated look

• Drive traffic

• Downtown Investment

• Examples



MATERIAL ORDINANCES

g. Use of any of the following decorative materials:

1) Any of the following decorative masonry elements:

a) Decorative masonry patterns, other than running bond pattern.

b) Bricks, tile, stone, cast stone or other masonry units of at least two (2) colors installed in layers or tiers to form a geometric pattern.

c) Decorative bands of masonry, such as a soldier course of brick or multicolored ceramic tile band, in conjunction with another exterior surface 
material.

2) Individualized wood patterns or continuous wood details, such as fancy butt shingles in a geometric pattern, decorative moldings, brackets, eave 
trim or lattice work.

3) Ceramic tile, stone, glass blocks, camera glass or other similar materials incorporated into other compatible surface materials and used to form or 
create, or in conjunction with, a geometric pattern, distinctive shape, unusual surface treatment, special lighting or other decorative or textural element.

4) Other materials with decorative or textural qualities, as demonstrated by architectural drawings and material samples, approved by the City as part 
of Design Review.

h. Decorative unit paving, including at least 50 square feet of multicolored tile, paver blocks, brick or other paving material in a decorative pattern, 
installed in a pedestrian-circulation area adjacent to the facade.

i. Artwork in the form of a mosaic mural, bas-relief sculpture, light sculpture, water sculpture, fountain, freestanding sculpture, art in pavement, 
murals, graphics or other forms, either freestanding in front of the facade or attached to the facade.

2. Prohibited Materials – All Zones – The following materials may not be used on any exterior surface which is visible from any area beyond the 
subject property:

a. Mirrored glass and other highly reflective materials.

b. Corrugated fiberglass.

c. Chain link fencing, except for temporary purposes, such as during construction.

https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/cgi/defs.pl?def=080


INCENTIVE ORDINANCES



MIW BRINGS

• Preservation experience

• Ordinance/code writing experience

• Key Resources and tools for growth



ACTION 
ITEMS

• Phase 2

• Business Profile

• Program Opportunity

• Incentives/Regulations/

Coding







QUESTIONS?

Zachary Lund

zlund@masonryinstitute.com

(360)-918-7275

mailto:zlund@masonryinstitute.com


Council Briefing Form  Revised 05/23/18 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

Agenda Item F1 

Touch Date: 08/06/19  
Brief Date:   08/20/19  
Action Date: 09/03/19   

Department: Community Development    
 
Presented By: Mark Ziegler   

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
Rotating Art Gallery  

 
  ATTACHMENTS:  
Copies of the art work chosen  
 

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head  

 

 
 

 
Finance Director  

 

 
 

 
Attorney 

 

 
 

 
City Clerk 

 

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
      

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  
 

The Shelton Arts Commission is recommending the latest installation of the civic center rotating art gallery 
project. As approved by the City Council, the civic center rotating art gallery policy and procedure has been 
followed with the following tasks: 

1.  Call for Artist – The call for artists were distributed to local artists through press releases, art 
organizations, and galleries. The deadline for artist submittals was July 19, 2019. Two artists 
submitted proposals for the gallery.  

2.  The Shelton Arts Commission met on August 6, 2019 to jury the submittals.  
3.  On August 20, 2019 the Shelton Arts Commission is presenting the recommended art to the City 

Council for approval. Upon approval, the art will be installed on September 4, 2019 and in place 
through November 29, 2019. 

 
The selected artists and work includes: 
 

ARTIST MEDIUM TITLES 
Rosalie Thun  Oil, Watercolor, Acrylic  Racing in the Dust, Mom and 

Ducklings, Mare and Foal, 
Harvest, Fire Season at Rainier  

Mariah Avellar  Acrylic and Oil  Balloon Purgatory, Under His 
Eye, Rough Bush, Tearable 
Night, Universal Extinction  

 
 
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
N/A 
 
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
N/A 



Council Briefing Form  Revised 05/23/18 

 
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  
N/A 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
 With Council concurrence staff requests the waiver of the three touch rule and appointment of the 

art work for the Rotating Art Gallery.  
 
 “I move to approve the Shelton Arts Commission’s recommendations for placement in the Civic 

Center Rotating Art Gallery”. 



 Balloon Purgatory  

 



 Rough Bush  

 

 Tearable Night  



  

Under His Eye  



 

 

Universal Extinction  

 



 Fire Season at Rainier  

 

 Harvest  

 



 Mare and Foal  

 

  

Mom and Ducklings 

 



 

Racing in the Dust  



Council Briefing Form  Revised 05/23/18 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item F2) 

Touch Date: 7/31/19 
Brief Date:       8/20/19 
Action Date:  9/3/19 

Department:  Public Works 
Presented By:    Craig Gregory 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
2019 Residential Paving Contract 
& Award  

  ATTACHMENTS:  
-Construction Contract 
-Project Award Form   

 

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head  

 

 
 

 
Finance Director  

 

 
 

 
Attorney 

 

 
 

 
City Clerk 

 

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
      

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   

There are several areas throughout our city with pavement that is in need of maintenance; the majority of 
these streets will not qualify for any type of grant or outside financial assistance. The City’s goal is to 
resurface multiple residential blocks each year. With the assistance of the pavement rating system, staff has 
been able to identify the area of the City in highest need of maintenance for 2019. After identifying the area in 
highest need, staff then identified the roadways having a PCI of between 69-25 within the area. These streets 
with a PCI of 69-25 within the “west mountain view” area make up the 2019 residential paving project. Using 
the MRSC Small Works Roster, an Invitation to Bid (ITB) was distributed on July 23, 2019. The ITB specified 
a group of road sections as Schedule A, and smaller groups of road sections as Additive 1, Additive 2, and 
Additive 3. This allowed the City flexibility to award the base bid, Schedule A, and additional road sections, 
“Additives” depending on the amounts of the bids. The bids were opened August 8, 2019. Seven responsive 
bids were received with Central Paving, LLC having the low, responsible bid of $194,797.00 for Schedule A 
and all three additives.   
 

ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
N/A 
   

BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
The 2019 adopted budget limit for this project is $225,000.   

 
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  

Information can be obtained through the Public Works Department.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
Staff requests the Council concur to place this item, along with the Construction Contract and the Project 
Award Form, on the September 3, 2019 Action Agenda.   

 



 

 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF SHELTON 
2019 Residential Paving Project 

 

 
 

July 2019 
 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
525 WEST COTA 

SHELTON, WASHINGTON 98584 
(360) 426-9731 

 
 

 
 



 

 
CITY OF SHELTON 

WASHINGTON 
 
 

CITY OFFICIALS & PERSONNEL 
 
 
 
MAYOR  BOB ROGERS 
 
DEPUTY MAYOR DEIDRE PETERSON 
  
COUNCILMEMBER GARY CRONCE 
 
COUNCILMEMBER KEVIN DORCY 
 
COUNCILMEMBER KATHY MCDOWELL 
 
COUNCILMEMBER ERIC ONISKO 
 
COUNCILMEMBER JOE SCHMIT 
 
CITY MANAGER JEFF NITEN 
 
DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS CRAIG GREGORY 
 
SUPERINTENDENT OF STREETS/WATER/EM&R  MIKE ALBAUGH 
 
SUPERINTENDENT OF SEWER/STORM BRENT ARMSTRONG 
 
SENIOR ASSOCIATE ENGINEER KOBREE SCHNEIDMILLER 
 
CITY ATTORNEY PORTER FOSTER RORICK 
 
ENGINEERING TECHNICIAN CLINT LEOPPARD 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   
 



 

 
 
 
 

CITY OF SHELTON 
2019 Residential Paving Project 

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
PART 1 – Bid Documents 
Invitation to Bid 1   
Bidding Requirements 

Bidder's Checklist 3 
Proposal Sheets 5 
Proposal Signature Form 7 
Subcontractor List 9 
Bidder’s Work History 13 
Certification of Wage Compliance 15 

To be Executed After Award 
Contract 17 
Certificate as to Corporate Principal 27 
Performance Bond 29 
Payment Bond 31 
Declaration of Option for Management Statutory  33 
 Retained Percentage Form  
   

PART 2 – Special Provisions  
 
PART 3 – Amendments to the Standard Specifications 
 
PART 4 - Wage Rates 
    
PART 5 - Appendices 

Appendix A Vicinity Map   
Appendix B Roadway Exhibits 

  
    
  



 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 



 

   
City of Shelton   
2019 Residential Paving Project 1 July 2019 
Construction Contract   

 

 
INVITATION TO BID 

CITY OF SHELTON 
2019 RESIDENTIAL PAVING PROJECT 

Small Works Project 
Project Estimate: $162,000 to $205,000 

The City of Shelton is releasing a Small Works Project. As a Contractor on the City of Shelton 
MRSC Small Works Roster for “Asphalt Pavement Roadways”, you are invited to submit a bid on 
this project on the enclosed Bid Proposal Form. 

Scope of Work: The work to be performed consists of an asphalt lift applied to the road 
section(s) with a paved width surface being per the dimensions of each location’s drawing. The 
HMA will be no less than 3 inches in depth over the existing gravel roads, and no less than 3 
inches over existing asphalt roadways. The HMA will be class ½ pg 64-22. The unit contract price 
shall include the cost for all labor, materials, equipment and tools for placing, compacting, and 
constructing asphalt pavement. This includes sealing all cold joints with AR4000W, tack coat 
grade of CRS-1 or special tack approved by City Engineer applied at rates specified in 2018 
Washington State Department of Transportation Standard Specifications 5-04, and all other 
associated work as described in the Contract documents. 

All prep work on existing gravel roads will be performed by City crews. All existing gravel roads 
will be shaped accordingly and compacted with a 5/8” gray crushed rock sub base. All prep 
work on existing asphalt roads, excluding tack coat, will be performed by City crews. City crews 
will also make any necessary storm drainage improvements prior to road preparation. All 
structures shall be adjusted to grade by City crews once paving has been completed. The City 
will provide traffic control for each project location. Advanced construction notification will also 
be provided by the City to the public and any affected parties. 

 
Delivery of Proposal: City of Shelton, 525 W Cota Street, Shelton, WA 98584 
All proposals must be clearly marked on the outside “2019 Residential Paving Project Bid”. 
 
Bid Date: Thursday, August 8, 2019 at 2:00 pm 
 
Bidders must be registered on the City of Shelton MRSC Small Works Roster at the time of bid 
deadline, to be eligible to submit a bid for this project. 
 
A bidder shall submit all questions in writing to Kobree Schneidmiller at 
Kobree.schneidmiller@sheltonwa.gov. No oral responses to questions by City personnel about 
the project will be binding on the City.  

The City of Shelton, in accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 78 Stat. 252, 42 
U.S.C. 2000d to 2000d-4 and Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Department of 

mailto:Kobree.schneidmiller@sheltonwa.gov


 

   
City of Shelton   
2019 Residential Paving Project 2 July 2019 
Construction Contract  Invitation to Bid 

 

Transportation, Subtitle A, Office of the Secretary, Part 21, Nondiscrimination in Federally-
Assisted Programs of the Department of Transportation issued pursuant to such Act, hereby 
notifies all bidders that it will affirmatively ensure that in any contract entered into pursuant to 
this advertisement, disadvantaged business enterprises as defined at 49 CFR Part 26 will be 
afforded full opportunity to submit bids in response to this invitation and will not be 
discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, national origin, or sex in consideration for 
an award 

Discrimination is prohibited. Each Bidder, contractor, or subcontractor (hereinafter the 
Contractor) shall not discriminate against any employee, applicant for employment, or any 
person seeking the services of the Contractor, on the basis of race, color, religion, creed, sex, 
age, national origin, marital status, or presence of any sensory, mental, or physical handicap, or 
any other legally protected status.  

The City of Shelton reserves to waive informalities in the bidding, accept a proposal of the 
lowest responsible bidder, reject any or all bids, revise or cancel the work, or require the work 
to be done in another way if the best interest of the City is served.  
 
 
 

  



 

   
City of Shelton   
2019 Residential Paving Project 3 July 2019 
Construction Contract  Bidder’s Checklist 

 

BIDDER’S CHECKLIST 

The bidder’s attention is especially called to the following forms which must be executed in full: 

(a) Proposal: The unit prices must be shown in the space provided. 

(b) Proposal Signature Sheet: To be filled in and signed by the bidder. 

(c) Non-Collusion Declaration: Included in Proposal. 

(d) Bidder’s Proposed Subcontractors: This form must be filled out and submitted with the bid 
proposal. 

(e) Subcontractor List: This form must be filled out and submitted with the bid proposal. 

(f) Bidder Work History: This form must be filled out and submitted with the bid proposal. 

(g) Certification of Wage Compliance. This form must be filled out and submitted with the bid 
proposal.  

The following forms are to be executed after the contract is awarded: 

(1) Contract: This agreement to be executed by the successful bidder. 

(2) Certificate as to Corporate Principal. 

(3) Performance Bond: To be executed by the successful bidder and the bidder’s surety company. 

(4) Payment Bond: To be executed by the successful bidder and the bidder’s surety company. 

(5) Declaration of Option for Management of Statutory Retained Percentage: This item to be 
executed by the successful bidder. 

  



 

   
City of Shelton   
2019 Residential Paving Project 4 July 2019 
Construction Contract  Bidder’s Checklist 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

 
  









 

   
City of Shelton   
2019 Residential Paving Project 8 July 2019 
Construction Contract  Proposal Signature Page 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

 

 
  





 

   
City of Shelton   
2019 Residential Paving Project 10 July 2019 
Construction Contract  Bidder’s Proposed Subcontractors 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

 

 
  



 

   
City of Shelton   
2019 Residential Paving Project 11 July 2019 
Construction Contract  Subcontractor List 

 

SUBCONTRACTOR LIST 
Prepared in Compliance with RCW 39.30.060 as Amended 

Project Name: 2019 Residential Paving Project 

Failure to list subcontractors who are proposed to perform the work of heating, ventilation and air 
conditioning, plumbing, as described in Chapter 18.106 RCW, and electrical as described in Chapter 
19.28 RCW will result in your bid being nonresponsive and therefore void. 

Subcontractor(s) that are proposed to perform the work of heating, ventilation and air conditioning, 
plumbing, as described in Chapter 18.106 RCW, and electrical as described in Chapter 19.28 RCW must be 
listed below. The work to be performed is to be listed below the subcontractor(s) name. 

If no subcontractor is listed below, the bidder acknowledges that it does not intend to use any 
subcontractor to perform those items of work. 

Subcontractor Name   
Work to be Performed   
   
   

Subcontractor Name   
Work to be Performed   
   
   

Subcontractor Name   
Work to be Performed   
   
   

Subcontractor Name   
Work to be Performed   
   
   

Subcontractor Name   
Work to be Performed   
   
   
  



 

   
City of Shelton   
2019 Residential Paving Project 12 July 2019 
Construction Contract  Subcontractor List 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 
  









 

   
City of Shelton   
2019 Residential Paving Project 16 July 2019 
Construction Contract  Certification of Compliance with Wage Payment 

Statutes 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank  

 

 

 



 

   
City of Shelton   
2019 Residential Paving Project 17 July 2019 
Construction Contract  Construction Contract 

 

CITY OF SHELTON 
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 

for 

2019 Residential Paving Project 

THIS AGREEMENT, made in two (2) copies each deemed an original, and entered into by and between the 
City of Shelton, Washington, a Washington municipal corporation (“Owner” / “City” / “Public Entity”), 
under and by virtue of Title 35 RCW as amended, and Central Paving, LLC (“Contractor”), a Washington 
State Corporation. 

WITNESSETH: 

In consideration of the terms and conditions contained in this Agreement and any Attachments referred 
to in this Agreement and incorporated by reference, the Owner and Contractor agree as follows: 

1. Owner Responsibilities. The City of Shelton, Washington, hereby agrees to retain the Contractor to 
perform the work to its completion in accordance with the attached plans and specifications subject 
to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

2. Contractor Compliance With All Applicable Laws. The Contractor agrees to abide by all applicable laws, 
whether or not explicitly referenced in this Agreement, and agrees that it is Contractor’s responsibility 
to identify and comply with such laws. This includes but is not limited to Washington’s laws against 
discrimination (Chapter 49.60 RCW and as subsequently amended); Washington’s provisions in 
buildings for aged and handicapped persons (Chapter 90.92 RCW and as subsequently amended); 
Washington’s Industrial Safety and Health Act (Chapter 49.17 RCW and as subsequently amended) 
and associated WAC provisions regarding safety standards; Washington’s Unemployment 
Compensation provisions (Chapter 50.24 RCW and as subsequently amended); Hours of Labor; 
Workplace Surveys and Material Safety Data Sheets, and all other applicable laws and statutes. Any 
reference to laws or statutes in this Agreement or Exhibits/Attachments thereto is not intended to be 
a complete or exclusive list and should not be relied upon as such. 

3. Proof of Registration, License, Bond. The Contractor agrees and represents that Contractor is 
appropriately registered, licensed, and bonded, and has provided or will provide written evidence of 
the same upon City request. Contractor agrees and represents that any subcontractors/assignees (if 
authorized by the City to perform pursuant to the terms of this Agreement) are appropriately 
registered, licensed, and bonded and have provided or will provide written evidence of the same upon 
City request. 

The Contractor shall submit all documentation required under this section for receipt by the 
City within ten (10) days of execution of this Agreement. 

4. Price – Payment – Warranty of Title. The Owner agrees to pay the bid amount of $194,797.00, 
including sales tax, for the work specified in the bid, subject to 1-04.6 of the Standard Specifications 
and any change orders hereafter approved in writing by both the Owner and the Contractor. Payment 
shall be made within thirty (30) days’ of receipt of an approved application for payment for work 
completed in accordance with this Agreement, subject to statutory retainage requirements. The 
Contractor warrants and guarantees that title to all work, improvements, materials and equipment 



 

   
City of Shelton   
2019 Residential Paving Project 18 July 2019 
Construction Contract  Construction Contract 

 

covered by an application for payment will pass to the Owner no later than the time of payment, free 
and clear of liens and any other encumbrances. 

5. Retainage. The Contractor agrees that pursuant to RCW 60.28.011, the City will withhold up to 5% of 
the value of the contract (excluding sales tax), as retainage until the project is completed and receives 
the written “FINAL ACCEPTANCE.” The Contractor shall specify to the City whether such retainage 
shall be held in a public fund, private interest-bearing account, or private escrow account, and absent 
such direction, the City shall hold such retainage in either of these in the City’s discretion. 

The Contractor may request that the City accept a retainage bond covering any or all of the amount 
in lieu of all or a portion of the retainage to be held in accounts, and the City shall evaluate and grant 
such request absent compelling basis to the contrary. The Contractor agrees that subcontractors may 
request the Contractor to submit a retainage bond to the City for the portion of the subcontractor’s 
retainage, and the Contractor agrees to comply with the requirements under RCW 60.28.011(6) in 
this event. 

After the expiration of the forty-five day period for giving notice of lien provided in RCW 60.28.011(2), 
and after receipt of the certificates of the department of revenue, the employment security 
department, and the department of labor and industries, the City shall release retainage in 
accordance with RCW 60.28.021. The Contractor agrees that all workers, subcontractors, and 
suppliers may have lien rights against the retainage as provided by law, and may bring claims against 
the retainage in the event of non-payment by the Contractor. Additionally, the Contractor agrees that 
the Washington State departments of revenue, labor and industries, and the employment security 
department may have lien rights against the retainage as provided by law, with respect to non-
payment by the Contractor of excise taxes, industrial insurance/workers’ compensation, and 
unemployment compensation. 

6. Performance and Payment Bonding. The Contractor represents that the Contractor has submitted, or 
submits concurrently with this Agreement, a performance bond and a payment bond for one hundred 
percent of the total contract price, and represents that the surety issuing the bond has an A.M. Best 
financial strength rating that satisfies current City requirements. 

7. Contractor Responsibilities. The Contractor shall do all work and furnish all tools, materials and 
equipment for the 2019 Residential Paving Project, in accordance with and as described in the 
proposal and the plans and specifications detailed in the Contract Documents and shall conform to 
the 2018 WSDOT Standard Specifications for Road, Bridge and Municipal Construction, and 
amendments thereto, (“Standard Specifications”), which are incorporated herein by this reference. 

The Contractor shall provide and bear the expense of all equipment, permits (if applicable), work and 
labor of any sort whatsoever that may be required for the transfer of materials and for constructing 
and completing the work agreed upon.  

The Contractor shall be solely responsible, and Owner shall have no responsibility, for all aspects of 
safety related to this Agreement and work performed. Contractor shall take reasonable precautions 
for the safety of, and shall provide reasonable protection to prevent damage, injury or loss to persons 
or property. 

8. Warranty/Guarantee. The Contractor warrants that materials and equipment furnished under the 
Agreement will be of good quality and new, that the Work will be performed in a workmanlike 



 

   
City of Shelton   
2019 Residential Paving Project 19 July 2019 
Construction Contract  Construction Contract 

 

manner, free from defects not inherent in the quality required or permitted, and that the Work will 
conform to the requirements of this Agreement including all Contract Documents (subject to any 
modifications agreed upon in writing by City and Contractor).  The City may conclude that Work not 
conforming to these requirements, including substitutions not properly approved and authorized, is 
defective. This warranty includes but is not limited to the implied warranties of merchantability and 
fitness for a particular purpose. All improvements are warrantied by Contractor to be free from 
defects in workmanship and material for a period of one (1) year under normal use, from the date of 
“final acceptance.” 

To the extent that warranty work is done after completion of the work provided under this 
Agreement, Contractor agrees that such work is also subject to the original prevailing wage for this 
Agreement creating the warranty obligation. In this event, the original Intent to Pay Prevailing Wages 
is still valid; however, Contractor is obligated to update the Affidavit of Wages required pursuant to 
this Agreement and applicable law. 

9. Wage Payment - Prevailing Wage Requirements. THE CITY OF SHELTON COMPLIES WITH THE 
PREVAILING WAGE LAW OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON (CHAPTER 39.12 RCW) AND REQUIRES ALL 
CONTRACTORS TO COMPLY. Contractor shall be responsible for paying all wages in accordance with 
Section 1-07.9(1) of the Standard Specifications. The Contractor must comply with the minimum rates 
for state wages. Current prevailing wage rates are as set forth in Contract Document set Part 4, which 
specifies classes of laborers, workers and/or mechanics anticipated on this project. Contractor agrees 
to update this information throughout the course of this project to ensure that this identification is 
accurate, and that all classes of laborers, workers, and mechanics are paid wages compliant with all 
applicable prevailing wage laws. 

10. Procedural and Filing Requirements – Statement of Intent to Pay Prevailing Wage; Affidavit of Wages 
Paid. The Contractor agrees to satisfy all related procedural and filing requirements, including but not 
limited to filing of Statement of Intent to Pay Prevailing Wages (see RCW 39.12.040) with the 
Department of Labor and Industries; agrees to promptly provide to the City proof of such filing and 
related approval by the Department of Labor and Industries; and agrees that the City may withhold 
all payments under this Agreement until such filing is completed. The Contractor shall ensure that this 
requirement is similarly satisfied by all subcontractors. The Contractor agrees to file with the City an 
Affidavit of Wages Paid, promptly upon completion of all work under this Agreement, and following 
approval of the Affidavit by the Department of Labor and Industries. The Contractor agrees that the 
City may withhold the retainage until the Contractor and all subcontractors have filed approved 
Affidavits of Wages Paid. The Contractor shall ensure that this requirement is similarly satisfied by all 
subcontractors. 

11. City Business License. In accordance with Shelton Municipal Code, anyone executing a contract with 
the City of Shelton, and their subcontractors, is subject to the licensing requirements and business 
and occupation tax levied under the Shelton Municipal Code. The City of Shelton Business License is 
required irrespective of whether goods or services are delivered inside or outside of the city limits, or 
whether the person’s physical office is inside or outside of the city limits. 

 
12. Completion of Work. Work shall be completed within Twenty (20) working days from the project 

start date specified in the Notice to Proceed. “Working Days” are as defined in the Standard 
Specifications. 



 

   
City of Shelton   
2019 Residential Paving Project 20 July 2019 
Construction Contract  Construction Contract 

 

13. Indemnification / Hold Harmless  

The Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold the City, its officers, officials, employees and 
volunteers harmless from any and all claims, injuries, damages, losses or suits including attorney fees, 
arising out of or in connection with the performance of this Agreement, except for injuries and 
damages caused by the sole negligence of the City. 
Should a court of competent jurisdiction determine that this Agreement is subject to RCW 4.24.115, 
then, in the event of liability for damages arising out of bodily injury to persons or damages to 
property caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence of the Contractor and the City, its 
officers, officials, employees, and volunteers, the Contractor’s liability hereunder shall be only to the 
extent of the Contractor’s negligence.  It is further specifically and expressly understood that the 
indemnification provided herein constitutes the Contractor's waiver of immunity under Industrial 
Insurance, Title 51 RCW, solely for the purposes of this indemnification.  This waiver has been mutually 
negotiated by the parties.  The provisions of this section shall survive the expiration or termination of 
this Agreement. 
 

14. Insurance 
 
A. INSURANCE TERM 
The Contractor shall procure and maintain insurance, as required in this Section, without interruption 
from commencement of the Contractor’s work through the term of the contract and for thirty (30) 
days after the Physical Completion date, unless otherwise indicated herein. 
 
B. NO LIMITATION 
The Contractor’s maintenance of insurance, its scope of coverage and limits as required herein shall 
not be construed to limit the liability of the Contractor to the coverage provided by such insurance, 
or otherwise limit the City’s recourse to any remedy available at law or in equity. 
 
C. MINIMUM SCOPE OF INSURANCE 
The Contractor’s required insurance shall be of the types and coverage as stated below: 

 
1. Automobile Liability insurance covering all owned, non-owned, hired and leased vehicles. 

Coverage shall be at least as broad as Insurance Services Office (ISO) form CA 00 01. Pollution 
Liability coverage at least as broad as that provided under ISO Pollution Liability-Broadened 
Coverage for Covered Autos Endorsement CA 99 48 shall be provided, and the Motor Carrier Act 
Endorsement (MCS 90) shall be attached.  

 
2. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be as least at broad as ISO occurrence form CG 00 

01 and shall cover liability arising from premises, operations, independent contractors, 
products-completed operations, stop gap liability, personal injury and advertising injury, and 
liability assumed under an insured contract.  The Commercial General Liability insurance shall be 
endorsed to provide a per project general aggregate limit using ISO form CG 25 03 05 09 or an 
equivalent endorsement.  There shall be no exclusion for liability arising from explosion, collapse 
or underground property damage.  The City shall be named as an additional insured under the 
Contractor’s Commercial General Liability insurance policy with respect to the work performed 
for the City using ISO Additional Insured endorsement CG 20 10 10 01 and Additional Insured-
Completed Operations endorsement CG 20 37 10 01 or substitute endorsements providing at 
least as broad coverage. 

 



 

   
City of Shelton   
2019 Residential Paving Project 21 July 2019 
Construction Contract  Construction Contract 

 

3. Workers’ Compensation coverage as required by the Industrial Insurance laws of the State of 
Washington. 
 

D. MINIMUM AMOUNTS OF INSURANCE 
The Contractor shall maintain the following insurance limits: 

 
1. Automobile Liability insurance with a minimum combined single limit for bodily injury and 

property damage of $1,000,000 per accident. 
 

2. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written with limits no less than $1,000,000 each 
occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate and $2,000,000 products-completed operations 
aggregate limit. 

3. Contractors Pollution Liability insurance covering losses caused by pollution conditions that arise 
from the operations of the Contractor.  Contractors Pollution Liability insurance shall be written 
in an amount of at least $1,000,000 per loss, with an annual aggregate of at least $1,000,000. 
Contractors Pollution Liability shall cover bodily injury, property damage, cleanup costs and 
defense including costs and expenses incurred in the investigation, defense, or settlement of 
claims. 
 
If the Contractors Pollution Liability insurance is written on a claims-made basis, the Contractor 
warrants that any retroactive date applicable to coverage under the policy precedes the effective 
date of this contract; and that continuous coverage will be maintained or an extended discovery 
period will be exercised for a period of three (3) years beginning from the time that work under 
the contract is completed. 
 
The City shall be named by endorsement as an additional insured on the Contractors Pollution 
Liability insurance policy. 

 
 

E. CITY FULL AVAILABILITY OF CONTRACTOR LIMITS 
 

If the Contractor maintains higher insurance limits than the minimums shown above, the City shall 
be insured for the full available limits of Commercial General and Excess or Umbrella liability 
maintained by the Contractor, irrespective of whether such limits maintained by the Contractor are 
greater than those required by this contract or whether any certificate of insurance furnished to the 
Public Entity evidences limits of liability lower than those maintained by the Contractor. 
 
Other Insurance Provision 

 
The Contractor’s Automobile Liability and Commercial General Liability insurance policies are to 
contain, or be endorsed to contain that they shall be primary insurance as respect the City.  Any 
insurance, self-insurance, or self-insured pool coverage maintained by the City shall be excess of the 
Contractor’s insurance and shall not contribute with it. 

 
F. ACCEPTABILITY OF INSURERS 

 
Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best rating of not less than A: VII. 

 



 

   
City of Shelton   
2019 Residential Paving Project 22 July 2019 
Construction Contract  Construction Contract 

 

G. VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE 
 

The Contractor shall furnish the City with original certificates and a copy of the amendatory 
endorsements, including but not necessarily limited to the additional insured endorsements, 
evidencing the insurance requirements of the Contractor before commencement of the work.  Upon 
request by the City, the Contractor shall furnish certified copies of all required insurance policies, 
including endorsements, required in this contract and evidence of all subcontractors’ coverage. 

 
H. SUBCONTRACTORS’ INSURANCE 

 
The Contractor shall cause each and every Subcontractor to provide insurance coverage that complies 
with all applicable requirements of the Contractor-provided insurance as set forth herein, except the 
Contractor shall have sole responsibility for determining the limits of coverage required to be 
obtained by Subcontractors.  The Contractor shall ensure that the City is an additional insured on each 
and every Subcontractor’s Commercial General liability insurance policy using an endorsement as 
least as broad as ISO CG 20 10 10 01 for ongoing operations and CG 20 37 10 01 for completed 
operations.  

 
I. NOTICE OF CANCELLATION 

 
The Contractor shall provide the City and all Additional Insureds for this work with written notice of 
any policy cancellation within two business days of their receipt of such notice. 

 
J. FAILURE TO MAINTAIN INSURANCE 

 
Failure on the part of the Contractor to maintain the insurance as required shall constitute a material 
breach of contract, upon which the City may, after giving five business days notice to the Contractor 
to correct the breach, immediately terminate the contract or, at its discretion, procure or renew such 
insurance and pay any and all premiums in connection therewith, with any sums so expended to be 
repaid to the City on demand, or at the sole discretion of the City, offset against funds due the 
Contractor from the City. 
 

15. Ownership of Records – Records Maintenance, Preservation, Availability and Potential Disclosure of 
Public Records. The City is a public entity subject to Washington State statutes regarding Public Records 
and Open Public Meetings. Subject to the Washington State Public Records Act (chapter 42.56 RCW), 
the City will generally produce all records generated and received in relation to the subject matter of 
this contract in response to public records requests received. 

 
Any information submitted in relation to the subject matter of this contract that is, in the opinion of 
the submitting party, proprietary or confidential, must be clearly designated as such. To the extent 
consistent with the Public Records Act, the City will attempt to maintain the confidentiality of 
confidential or proprietary content marked as such, PROVIDED that if a request is made for marked 
documents, the City will notify the party who submitted the information of the request, and will 
provide notice of a date on which the records will be released to the requester, unless the party who 
submitted the information obtains a court order enjoining release and produces the same to the City 
prior to the release date. If no court order is so produced, the City will release the requested 
information. 

 



 

   
City of Shelton   
2019 Residential Paving Project 23 July 2019 
Construction Contract  Construction Contract 

 

Information submitted in relation to the subject matter of this contract must be marked proprietary or 
confidential at the time of submittal, and may not later be so designated. Nothing in this section 
provides any guarantee or assurance that information submitted will not be produced as required by 
the Public Records Act, even if marked proprietary or confidential. BY SUBMITTING INFORMATION IN 
RELATION TO THE SUBJECT MATTER OF THIS CONTRACT, THE SUBMITTING PARTY AGREES TO WAIVE 
AND RELEASE ANY CLAIM OR CAUSE OF ACTION AGAINST THE CITY, RELATED TO OR ARISING FROM 
THE CITY’S GOOD FAITH RELEASE OF SUCH INFORMATION IN RESPONSE TO A PUBLIC RECORDS 
REQUEST. 

16. Designated Points of Contact - Notices. Any Notice required or permitted to be given under this 
Agreement shall be deemed sufficient if either A) given in writing and deposited into any post office as 
first-class, postage prepaid and as certified mail, return receipt requested, to the address designated 
by the Parties, and shall be deemed received on the third (3rd) business day following the date of 
mailing (with date of mailing not included in the date calculation); or B) hand-delivery to the individual 
designated as the office point of contact as specified herein; or C) transmitted by e-mail to and from 
the e-mail addresses respectively designated by the parties. At the pre-construction meeting, the 
parties shall provide each other with a written designation specifying: i) the name and contact 
information for the City’s and Contractor’s field point of contact; ii) the name and contact information 
for the City’s and Contractor’s office point of contact; iii) the respective mailing and physical addresses 
for service; iv) the respective e-mail addresses for service.   Any change to this information must be in 
a written notice provided to the other party. 

 

Notices to the City of Shelton shall be sent to the designated representative at the following address: 
 

      Kobree Schneidmiller, Senior Associate Engineer 
      City of Shelton 
      525 W Cota Street 
      Shelton, WA 98584 
      Phone number: (360) 432-5176 
      Email: kobree.schneidmiller@sheltonwa.gov 
 
Notices to the Contractor shall be sent to the designated representative at the following address: 
 
      Joel Greear, Managing Member 
      Central Paving, LLC 
      1410 W Dolarway Road 
      Ellensburg, WA 98926 
      Phone number: (509) 899-7371 
      Email: joel@centralpavingllc.com 
 

18. Attorneys Fees and Costs. In the event of litigation arising under this Agreement, the parties shall be 
responsible for their own fees and costs. 

19. Applicable Law, Jurisdiction and Venue. This Agreement shall be governed, construed, and interpreted 
according to the laws of the State of Washington. The venue for any legal action in which the State of 
Washington is not named as a party shall be in Mason County, Washington, with jurisdiction vested in 

mailto:kobree.schneidmiller@sheltonwa.gov
mailto:joel@centralpavingllc.com


 

   
City of Shelton   
2019 Residential Paving Project 24 July 2019 
Construction Contract  Construction Contract 

 

the Mason County District and Mason County Superior Courts, in the City’s discretion. Venue for any 
legal action in which the State of Washington is named as a party shall be pursuant to Standard 
Specifications section 1-09.11(3). 

20. Disputes and Claims. Disputes and claims related in any way to this Agreement shall be governed by 
the procedures set forth in section 1-09 of the 2018 Standard Specifications.  

21. Liquidated Damages - Liability. If the work is not completed within the time specified, the Contractor 
agrees to pay the Owner liquidated damages in the sum specified in Section 1-08.9 of the Standard 
Specifications for each day that said work remains uncompleted after expiration of the time specified 
under this Agreement. 
It is further provided that no liability shall attach to the City of Shelton, Washington, by reason of 
entering into this Agreement, except as expressly provided herein. 
 

22. Severability. Should any term, provision, condition or other portion of this Agreement or its application 
be held to be inoperative, invalid or unenforceable, and the remainder of this Agreement still fulfill its 
purposes, the balance of this Agreement or its application or other circumstances shall not be affected 
thereby, and shall continue in full force and effect. 

 
23. Exhibits/Attachments - Entirety. This Agreement and attachments/exhibits attached hereto and 

incorporated herein by this reference represent the entire agreement between the Parties. Any prior 
written or oral statement or proposal or representation, not incorporated herein, shall be excluded, and 
shall not alter any term or provision of this Agreement. This Agreement may be modified or amended 
only in writing by any authorized representatives of the Parties.  

 
Exhibits/Attachments include: Except to the extent explicitly contradicted by express terms of this 
Agreement, the following are incorporated by reference into this Agreement (all collectively “Contract 
Documents”): i) City of Shelton Design and Construction Standards (as effective January 2019); ii) 
Washington State Department of Transportation Standard Specifications for Road, Bridge, and Municipal 
Construction (2018) and amendments thereto, (“Standard Specifications”); Documents and Instruments 
detailed in the Table of Contents dated July 2019 attached hereto as Part 1. Prevailing Wage classes and 
rates are attached in the Contract Documents as Part 4. In the event of a conflict or discrepancy among 
the Contract Documents, the following order of priority shall govern interpretation: First: this Agreement; 
Second:  City of Shelton Design and Construction Standards; Third: Standard Specifications. 
 
If the Contractor finds a conflict, error or discrepancy in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall 
timely report it to the Owner in writing, and shall receive a written interpretation or clarification from 
Owner to determine how to proceed. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

   
City of Shelton   
2019 Residential Paving Project 25 July 2019 
Construction Contract  Construction Contract 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed the day and year of 
the last signature affixed hereto. 
 

CENTRAL PAVING, LLC 

Signed this   day of  , 20  

   
Joel Greear, Managing Member  

Federal Tax ID No.  Contractor License #  

 

CITY OF SHELTON 

COUNTERSIGNED this _____ day of   , 20___. 

  
Bob Rogers, Mayor 

Attested: 

  
City Clerk 
  



 

   
City of Shelton   
2019 Residential Paving Project 26 July 2019 
Construction Contract  Construction Contract 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 
  



 

   
City of Shelton   
2019 Residential Paving Project 27 July 2019 
Construction Contract  Certificate as to Corporate Principal 

 

(execute this document if Contractor is a Corporation) 

CERTIFICATE AS TO CORPORATE PRINCIPAL 

I, ______________________________, certify that I am the ______________________ of the corporation 
named as Contractor in the Agreement attached hereto; that ___________________, who signed said 
Agreement on behalf of the Contractor, was then ____________________________ of said corporation; 
that said Agreement was duly signed for and in behalf of said corporation by authority of its governing 
body, and is within the scope of its corporate powers. 

By ___________________________________ 

Title ___________________________________ 

State of ______________________  

Subscribed and sworn to before me this _____ day of ____________________, 20____. 

___________________________________________ 
Notary Public in and for the State of Washington. 
My Commission expires______________. 

State of Washington ) 
 ) ss 
County of _____________________ ) 

___________________________ being duly sworn deposes and says that they are __________________ 

of ____________________________________. 
 (Name of Organization) 
  



 

   
City of Shelton   
2019 Residential Paving Project 28 July 2019 
Construction Contract  Certificate as to Corporate Principal 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

 
 



 

   
City of Shelton   
2019 Residential Paving Project 29 July 2019 
Construction Contract  Performance Bond 

 

PERFORMANCE BOND 

BOND TO CITY OF SHELTON KNOW ALL BY THESE PRESENTS: 

That we, the undersigned,          
            
 as Principal, and_________________________________________, a corporation 
organized and existing under the laws of the State of Washington, as a surety corporation, and 
qualified under the laws of the State of Washington to become surety upon bonds of 
contractors with municipal corporations, as surety, are jointly and severally held and firmly 
bound to the City of Shelton in the penal sum as identified in the Standard Specifications, the 
payment of which sum on demand we bind ourselves and our successors, heirs, administrators 
or personal representatives, as the case may be. 

This obligation is entered pursuant to the statutes of the State of Washington and the 
Ordinances of the City of Shelton. 

Dated at ________________, Washington, this _______ day of ________________, 20__. 

Nevertheless, the conditions of the above obligation are such that: 

WHEREAS, the Councilmembers of the City of Shelton passed in regular Council meeting on 
September 3, 2019 to award this contract, the Councilmembers of said City of Shelton has let or 
is about to let to the said,     , the above bounden Principal, a 
certain contract, the said contract being 2019 Residential Paving Project, and providing for the 
paving of certain streets in the City of Shelton (which contract is referred to herein and is made 
a part hereof as though attached hereto), and WHEREAS, the said Principal has accepted, or is 
about to accept, the said contract, and undertake to perform the work therein provided for in 
the manner and within the time set forth; 

NOW, THEREFORE, if the said Principal shall faithfully perform all of the provisions of said 
contract in the manner and within the time therein set forth, or within such extensions of time 
as may be granted under said contract and shall hold said City of Shelton harmless from any 
loss or damage occasioned to any person or property by reason of any carelessness or 
negligence of the said Principal, or any sub-contractor in the performance of said work, and 
shall indemnify and hold the City of Shelton harmless from any damage or expense by reason of 
failure of performance as specified in said contract, then this obligation shall be released, 
otherwise it shall be in full force.  



 

   
City of Shelton   
2019 Residential Paving Project 30 July 2019 
Construction Contract  Performance Bond 

 

The Surety hereby agrees that modifications and changes may be made in the terms and 
provisions of the aforesaid Contract without notice to Surety, and any such modifications or 
changes increasing the total amount to be paid the Principal shall automatically increase the 
obligation of the Surety on this Performance Bond in a like amount, such increase, however, not 
to exceed one hundred percent (100%) of the original amount of this bond without the consent 
of the Surety. 

PRINCIPAL 
 
By:   ______________________________________________________________________ 
       Signature 

   
Printed 
   
Title  

SURETY 

ATTEST: (if corporation) 
 
   
Surety 
 
By:   

Signature  
   

Printed  
   

Title 

Please attach certification of authorization for signatures for Surety company. 

CITY OF SHELTON 

Template contracts reviewed as to form by City Attorney, August 13, 2007 

 



 

   
City of Shelton   
2019 Residential Paving Project 31 July 2019 
Construction Contract  Payment Bond 

 

PAYMENT BOND 

BOND TO CITY OF SHELTON KNOW ALL BY THESE PRESENTS: 

That we, the undersigned,          
              
as Principal, and_________________________________________, a corporation organized and 
existing under the laws of the State of Washington, as a surety corporation, and qualified under 
the laws of the State of Washington to become surety upon bonds of contractors with 
municipal corporations, as surety, are jointly and severally held and firmly bound to the City of 
Shelton in the penal sum as identified in the Standard Specifications, the payment of which sum 
on demand we bind ourselves and our successors, heirs, administrators or personal 
representatives, as the case may be. 

This obligation is entered pursuant to the statutes of the State of Washington and the 
Ordinances of the City of Shelton. 

Dated at ________________, Washington, this _______ day of ________________, 20__. 

Nevertheless, the conditions of the above obligation are such that: 

WHEREAS, the Councilmembers of the City of Shelton passed in regular Council meeting on 
September 3, 2019 to award this contract, the Councilmembers of said City of Shelton has let or 
is about to let to the said,     , the above bounden Principal, a 
certain contract, the said contract being 2019 Residential Paving Project, and providing for the 
paving of certain streets in the City of Shelton (which contract is referred to herein and is made 
a part hereof as though attached hereto), and WHEREAS, the said Principal has accepted, or is 
about to accept, the said contract, and undertake to perform the work therein provided for in 
the manner and within the time set forth; 

NOW, THEREFORE, if the said Principal shall make payment to all persons having a direct 
relationship with the Principal or a subcontractor of the Principal for furnishing labor, material or 
both in the prosecution of the work provided for in the contract identified above, and any 
authorized modifications of the contract that subsequently are made the above obligation is void.  

The Surety hereby agrees that modifications and changes may be made in the terms and 
provisions of the aforesaid Contract without notice to Surety, and any such modifications or 
changes increasing the total amount to be paid the Principal shall automatically increase the 
obligation of the Surety on this Performance Bond in a like amount, such increase, however, not 
to exceed one hundred percent (100%) of the original amount of this bond without the consent 
of the Surety. 



 

   
City of Shelton   
2019 Residential Paving Project 32 July 2019 
Construction Contract  Payment Bond 

 

PRINCIPAL 
 
By:   ______________________________________________________________________ 
       Signature 

   
Printed 
   
Title  

SURETY 

ATTEST: (if corporation) 
 
   
Surety 
 
By:   

Signature  
   

Printed  
   
 Title 

 

Please attach certification of authorization for signatures for Surety company. 

CITY OF SHELTON 

Template contracts reviewed as to form by City Attorney, August 13, 2007 

  



 

   
City of Shelton   
2019 Residential Paving Project 33 July 2019 
Construction Contract  Declaration of Option for Management of Statutory 

Retained Percentage 
 

DECLARATION OF OPTION FOR MANAGEMENT OF STATUTORY 
RETAINED PERCENTAGE 

Note: This form must be submitted at the time the Contractor executes the contract. Contractor shall 
designate the option desired by checking the appropriate space. 

Monies reserved under provisions of RCW 60.28, at the option of the Contractor, shall be (select one): 

________(1) Retained in a fund by the public body; 

________(2) Deposited by the public body in an interest bearing account in a bank, mutual savings bank, 
or savings and loan association.  Interest on moneys reserved by a public body under the provision of a 
public improvement shall be paid to the contractor; 

________(3) *Placed in escrow with a bank or trust company by the public body.  When the money's 
reserved are placed in escrow, the public body shall issue a check representing the sum of the moneys 
reserved payable to the bank or trust company and the contractor jointly.  This check shall be converted 
into bonds and securities chosen by the contractor and approved by the public body and the bonds and 
securities shall be held in escrow.  Interest on the bonds and securities shall be paid to the contractor as 
the interest accrues. 

The Contractor in choosing option (2) or (3) agrees to assume full responsibility to pay all costs, which may 
accrue from escrow services, brokerage charges or both, and further agrees to assume all risks in 
connection with the investment of the retained percentages in securities. 

Contractor Signature_______________________________ 

Date________________________ 

Printed   

Title   

Project Name   

 

 

 

 



 

   
City of Shelton   
2019 Residential Paving Project 34 July 2019 
Construction Contract  Declaration of Option for Management of Statutory 

Retained Percentage 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 



 

   
City of Shelton   
2019 Residential Paving Project 35 July 2019 
Construction Contract  Certificate of Owner’s Attorney 

 

CERTIFICATE OF OWNER’S ATTORNEY 

I, the undersigned, _____________________________, the duly authorized and acting legal 

representative of _______________________________, do hereby certify as follows 

I have examined the attached contract(s) and performance and payment bond(s) and the manner of 

execution thereof, and I am of the opinion that each of the aforesaid agreements are adequate and have 

has been duly executed by the proper parties thereto acting through their duly authorized 

representatives; that said representatives have full power and authority to execute said agreements on 

behalf of the respective parties named thereon; and that the foregoing agreements constitute valid and 

legally binding obligations upon the parties executing the same in accordance with terms, conditions, and 

provisions thereof. 

By: ___________________________________ 

Date:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

   
City of Shelton   
2019 Residential Paving Project 36 July 2019 
Construction Contract  Certificate of Owner’s Attorney 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 
  



 

   
City of Shelton   
2019 Residential Paving Project 37 July 2019 
Construction Contract  General Requirements 

 

 
GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS: COORDINATION OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

This project shall be constructed in accordance with the WDOT 2018 Standard Specifications for Road, 
Bridge, and Municipal Construction, hereinafter referred to as the Standard Specifications, and all 
applicable APWA (American Public Works Association) Standards. 

The above mentioned Standard Specifications, except as they may be modified or superseded by the 
Bidding Requirements or Special Provisions shall govern bidding, award, execution and all work and 
materials. 

The various parts of the contract documents are all essential to the Contract and are intended to be 
complementary and prescribe and provide for a complete project. Any work or material that has been 
omitted from the description of the work but is clearly implied shall be furnished by the Contractor as 
though it has been specifically stated. 

DEFINITIONS 

Whenever used in the contract documents, the following terms have the meanings indicated which are 
applicable to both the singular and plural thereof: 

APWA – American Public Works Association 

AWWA – American Waterworks Association 

CITY – Refers to the City of Shelton. The City’s authorized representative is the City Engineer or his or 
her designee. 

CONTRACTOR – The person, firm or corporation with whom the Owner has executed the agreement 

DOE – Washington State Department of Ecology 

DOH – Washington State Department of Health 

ENGINEER – The City of Shelton City Engineer or his or her designee. 

EPA – Environmental Protection Agency 

INSPECTOR – The authorized representative of the Engineer who is assigned to the project site or any 
part thereof. 

OWNER – The City of Shelton, Washington, for whom the work is to be performed, acting through its 
legally constituted officials, officers, or employees. 

STATE – Wherever the Standard Specifications use the term “State” to define “Owner”, the term 
“State” shall be construed to mean the City of Shelton. 



 

   
City of Shelton   
2019 Residential Paving Project 38 July 2019 
Construction Contract  General Requirements 

 

SUBCONTRACTOR – The person, firm, or corporation having a direct contract with the Contractor or 
with any other subcontractor for the performance of a part of the work at the site. 

WSDOT – Washington State Department of Transportation 

INTERPRETATION OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS (PRIOR TO BID) 

All questions about the meaning or intent of the contract documents shall be submitted to the Contracting 
Agency in writing. Replies will be uploaded to Builder’s Exchange of Washington (www.bxwa.com) and 
registered plan holders will be notified by e-mail. Questions received less than seven days prior to the 
date for opening bids will not be answered. Only questions answered by formal written addenda will be 
binding. Oral and other interpretations or clarifications will be without legal effect. Bids shall obtain an 
acknowledgment of receipt of all addenda. 

FORM OF BID 

Bid shall be made on the proposal form provided. All blank spaces in the form shall be fully completed. 
Numbers shall be stated in figures. The completed forms shall be without interlineation, alteration, 
erasure or recapitulation of work to be done. 

Each bid must be accompanied by the fully executed “Proposal Signature Sheet” provided and by a 
proposal guaranty or bid bond of 5% of the total bid as prescribed in Section 1-02.7 of the Standard 
Specifications, and made payable to the Owner. 

Each bidder is hereby notified that by signing the proposal form, they are declaring non-collusion in the 
bid process. 

REUSE OF DOCUMENTS 

Neither Contractor nor any subcontractor, manufacturer, fabricator, supplier or distributor shall have or 
acquire any title to or ownership rights in any of the Plans, Specifications or other documents (or copies 
thereof) prepared by or bearing the seal of the Engineer; and they shall not reuse any of them on 
extensions of the project or any other project without written verification or adaptation by the Engineer. 

CONTRACT BONDS 

The successful bidder shall furnish at the time of execution of the contract, two contract bonds (payment 
and performance) as prescribed in Section 1-03.4 and 1-03.5 of the Standard Specifications. Also, the 
Contractor shall obtain and maintain all insurance for the amounts, times, and coverage prescribed in 
Section 1-07.18 of the Standard Specifications, except as may be modified in these Special Provisions. 

PUBLIC LIABILITY AND PROPERTY DAMAGE INSURANCE 

The Contractor shall obtain insurance and comply with all requirements outlined in Section 1-07.18(1)-(3) 
of the Standard Specifications. 

http://www.bxwa.com/


 

   
City of Shelton   
2019 Residential Paving Project 39 July 2019 
Construction Contract  General Requirements 

 

WASTE SITE 

The Owner has not provided a waste site for the Contractor. All construction waste is the responsibility of 
the Contractor to dispose properly. The Contractor shall certify to the Owner that the construction debris 
is disposed of in compliance with all Federal, State and Local laws. The Owner will provide a location for 
all salvageable materials as directed by the Owner. 

LIMITATIONS ON ENGINEER’S RESPONSIBILITIES 

Whenever in the Contract Documents the terms “as ordered”, “as directed”, “required”, “as allowed”, or 
terms of like effect or import are used, or the adjectives “reasonable”, “suitable”, “acceptable”, “proper”, 
or “satisfactory” or adjectives of like effect or import are used, to describe requirements, direction, review 
or judgment of the Engineer as to the work, it is intended that such requirement, direction, review or 
judgment will be solely to evaluate the work for compliance with the Contract Documents (unless there 
is a specific statement indicating otherwise). The use of any such term or adjective never indicates that 
the Engineer shall have authority to undertake responsibility contrary to the provisions of the following 
paragraphs. 

The Engineer will not be responsible for the Contractor’s means, methods, techniques, sequences, or 
procedures of construction, or the safety precautions and programs incident thereto, and the Engineer 
will not be responsible for the Contractor’s failure to perform the work in accordance with the contract 
documents. 

The Engineer will not be responsible for the acts or omissions of the Contractor or of any Subcontractors, 
or of the agents or employees of any Contractor or Subcontractor, or of any other persons at the site or 
otherwise performing any of the work. 

WORK BY OTHERS 

All work on this contract shall be performed by the Contractor. 

SOURCE OF MATERIALS 

No source has been provided for any of the materials required for construction of this project. 

The Contractor shall make his or her own arrangements to obtain all required materials at his or her own 
expense, and all cost of acquiring, producing and placing the materials in the finished work will be 
considered incidental to the unit bid involved. 

MATERIAL STANDARDS 

Any material specified by reference to the number, symbol, or title of a specific standard such as a 
commercial standard, federal specification, a trade association standard, or other similar standard, shall 
comply with the requirements in the latest revision thereof and of any amendment or supplement 
thereto, in effect on the date of advertisement for bids, except as limited to type, class, or grade in the 
Standard Specifications or Special Provisions. 



 

   
City of Shelton   
2019 Residential Paving Project 40 July 2019 
Construction Contract  General Requirements 

 

WAGE RATES 

Statutes of Washington RCW 39.12 and RCW 49.28 as amended or supplemented, shall be a part of this 
contract. The Contractor shall comply with Section 1-07.9 of the Standard Specifications. (See Part 4 for 
copy). 

PREVENTION OF ENVIRONMENTAL POLLUTION AND THE PRESERVATION OF PUBLIC NATURAL RESOURCES 

The Contractor shall comply with those provisions of federal, state and local statutes, ordinances and 
regulations dealing with the prevention of environmental pollution and the preservation of public natural 
resources that affect or are affected by the project. 

The Contractor shall take the necessary precautions to prevent contamination of the creek from 
accidental spills of motor fuel, oil grease, sediment, silt, and all other materials. The Contractor shall 
maintain a clean site and control litter during all phases of construction and testing. 

LICENSES, REGULATORY SUBMITTALS, AND PERMITS  

The Contractor shall obtain all licenses and permits required by federal, state and local law. The Contractor 
is specifically notified that a City of Shelton Business and Occupation License is required. 

Contractor shall obtain necessary local and state permits for work on public rights-of-way. 

PROGRESS SCHEDULE 

The Contractor shall prepare and submit a progress schedule in conformance with Section 1-08.3. In 
conformance with Section 1-08.3 of the Standard Specifications, the Contractor, after being awarded the 
contract, shall immediately prepare and submit to the Contracting Agency for review and approval a 
progress schedule which will insure the completion of the project within the time specified. Adequate 
equipment and forces shall be made available by the Contractor to carry out the schedule to completion 
of the contract within the time specified. 

TIME FOR COMPLETION 

In addition to Section 1-08.5, this project, as awarded by Owner, shall be completed in its entirety within 
the number of working days stipulated in the Contract. The number of working days provided in the 
contract is deemed to be sufficient time to complete the project. The Contractor shall furnish necessary 
manpower and equipment to insure completion of the contract within the specified number of working 
days. 

Holidays shall be those legal holidays as defined under Section 1-08.5 in the Standard Specifications. 

LIQUIDATED DAMAGES 

Failure to complete the work on time shall result in the Contractor paying to the Owner liquidated 
damages in accordance with Section 1-08.9 of the Standard Specifications. 

MOBILIZATION 

Mobilization shall conform to Section 1-09.7 Payment for Mobilization of the Standard Specifications. 



 

   
City of Shelton   
2019 Residential Paving Project 41 July 2019 
Construction Contract  General Requirements 

 

PROGRESS PAYMENTS, FINAL PAYMENTS, AND RETAINED PERCENTAGES 

Payment 

Section 1-09.9 of the Standard Specifications is hereby amended to add the following: The Contractor and 
Contracting Agency shall determine a cut-off date each month to calculate that previous month’s pay 
estimate (i.e., the 25th of each month). 

SALES TAX 

The Contractor is hereby notified that the work on this project is on municipal land. According to the 
provisions of Section 1-07.2(2) of the Standard Specifications, the Contractor shall be responsible to pay 
all applicable sales tax. 

GENERAL CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY 

It shall be the Contractor’s responsibility to notify in advance Fire and Police departments when their 
operations will hinder in any manner normal access by emergency vehicles. The Contractor shall leave 
their afterhours emergency telephone number(s) with the Police Department so that contact may be 
made at all times in case of emergencies involving the project. The following emergency services may be 
contacted at the following numbers: Dispatch – 426-4441 (notifies all emergency vehicles in City, including 
Police, Fire, and ambulance), Fire Department direct – 426-3348. 

 

 
  



 

   
City of Shelton   
2019 Residential Paving Project 42 July 2019 
Construction Contract  General Requirements 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

 

 

 



City of Shelton 
 

Project Award Form 
 

Name of the contractor awarded the contract: Central Paving, LLC 
 

Date awarded: September 3, 2019 
 
Amount of the contract: $ 194,797.00 (including tax) 
 
Description of the work to be performed:  
 

2019 Residential Paving Project 
 

 
Location where the bid quotations are available for public inspection:  

Shelton Civic Center, 525 W. Cota Street, Shelton, WA 98584 
 
Authorizing signature(s): 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Mayor Rogers      Deputy Mayor Peterson   
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Councilmember Cronce    Councilmember Dorcy  
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Councilmember McDowell    Councilmember Onisko   
 
 
______________________________ 
Councilmember Schmit  



Council Briefing Form Revised 05/23/18 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item G1) 

Touch Date: 7/22/19 
Brief Date:       8/6/19 
Action Date: 8/20/19 

Department:  Public Works 
Presented By:    Craig Gregory 

APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
Resolution No. 1150-0719 Kubota 
Sole Source Purchase 

ATTACHMENTS: 
-Resolution 1150-0719
-Kubota Sole Source Letter
-PO0051

Action Requested: 

Ordinance 

Resolution 

Motion 

Other 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 

Dept. Head  

Finance Director 

Attorney 

City Clerk 

City Manager 

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
The MBR Plant is approaching 10 years old and in need of upgrades to maintain proper disinfection. The 
City has contracted with Gray & Osborne, Inc. to complete the Sewer Comprehensive Plan Update which 
will likely include a plan for the much needed upgrades. For the meantime, new membranes need to be 
purchased in order to maintain disinfection, which will allow us time to completed the comp plan and 
identify the best and more cost effective application. The current membranes at the plant are Kubota 
brand and are manufactured and sold only by Kubota Membrane USA. There are other brands that 
manufacture membranes, but placing those membranes in our MBR plant would require us to retrofit our 
current system to allow the other brands to fit and function properly, which would be at a much higher cost 
and not cost effective. 

ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES: 
We have the option to not purchase new membranes at all but that puts the City at risk for failing 
the disinfection requirements and could have potential negative outcomes. 

BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION: 
The MBR Upgrades were approved by Council in the 2019 Budget. Although this purchase is only a small 
item for the meantime, the full upgrades will be accomplished once the Sewer Comprehensive Plan 
Update is completed and identifies what will need to be upgraded. 

PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS: 
Information can be obtained through the Public Works Department. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION: 
Staff recommends “I move to adopt Resolution No. 1150-0719 and authorize the Mayor to sign purchase 
order number PO0051 for the purchase of Kubota Membrane Units”.   



08/12/19 1 10:11 AM 

 
RESOLUTION NO.  1150-0719 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON, DECLARING THE 

PURCHASE OF KUBOTA MEMBRANE UNITS AND ASSOCIATED COMPONENT PARTS 
TO BE CLEARLY AND LEGITIMATELY LIMITED TO A SOLE SOURCE, AND WAIVING 

COMPETITIVE BIDDING REQUIREMENTS FOR SUCH PURCHASES. 
 

 
WHEREAS, the MBR (Membrane Bio Reactor) Plant is approaching ten years old and in need of 
upgrades; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City is currently in the process of having a sewer comprehensive plan update completed, 
which will likely include recommended upgrades to the existing water reclamation plant and may include 
planning for a substantial increase in future plant flow and load; and  
 
WHEREAS, the planning and construction schedule for this effort will require at least two years 
minimum before the upgrades are operational; and 
 
WHEREAS, the most cost effective option to bring the plant up to full operational redundancy for the 
time being is to replace the existing damaged or poor condition membranes with the same units that are 
currently at the plant; and 
 
WHEREAS, the units that are currently in place are Kubota brand which is manufactured and supplied 
only by Kubota Membrane USA. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Shelton, Washington, as 
follows: 
 
The City Council declares that purchase of Kubota membrane units and associated component parts is 
clearly and legitimately limited to a single source of supply because Kubota Membrane USA is the only 
manufacturer and direct distributor of compatible equipment and parts. 
 
Under RCW 39.04.280, the City Council waives competitive bidding requirements for the sole source 
purchases of Kubota membrane units and associated component parts for the City of Shelton MBR Plant. 
 
 
 
PASSED by the City Council of the City of Shelton on this 20th day of July, 2019. 
 
                                                                           
                                                   
   
 ___________________________________ 
 Mayor Rogers   
 
AUTHENTICATED BY: 
  
____________________________      
City Clerk Nault 





 

 

PURCHASE ORDER 
 
 

VENDOR NAME & ADDRESS: SHIP TO NAME & ADDRESS: 

  

P.O. # 
P.O. 

DATE REQUISTIONER SHIP VIA F.O.B. 
POINT TERMS 

      

QTY UNIT DESCRIPTION BARS # 
UNIT 

PRICE TOTAL 

      

      

      

      

      

PURCHASE JUSTIFICATION SHIPPING  

 
SUBTOTAL  
Tax (8.8%)  

APPROVING MANAGER 
 

TOTAL  

 
Enter this order in accordance with the prices, terms, delivery method, and specifications listed above. 
Please notify the Department Contact immediately if you are unable to ship as specified. 

 
Please send a copy of your invoice attention of:  
 

City of Shelton 
Public Works Department 
525 W. Cota Street  
Shelton, WA  98584 

 
 
 

 

 

525 W. Cota St., Shelton, WA 98584 
Tel: 360/426-4491; Email: cityhall@ci.shelton.wa.us 

Website: www.ci.shelton.wa.us 

mailto:cityhall@ci.shelton.wa.us
http://www.ci.shelton.wa.us/


Council Briefing Form  Revised 05/24/2018 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

Agenda Item G2 

Touch Date: 07/08/19 
Brief Date:  08/06/19 
Action Date:  08/20/19 

 

Department:  Executive 
 
Presented By: Jeff Niten 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
  OpenGov software contract 

 
  ATTACHMENTS:  
Order  
Statement of Work 
Contract 
 
 

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head  

 

 
 

 
Finance Director  

 

 
    

 
Attorney 

 

 
 

 
City Clerk 

 

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
JN      

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  

 
One of the Council’s Goals for the organization is to ensure accountable government.  The City is taking 
steps to increase transparency, manage performance, plan strategically, and become an efficient and 
effective City Management and Operations organization.  OpenGov’s platform will provide the following 
benefits and outcomes to the City: 
 
Budgeting and Planning: The OpenGov platform will provide an end to end budget development solution 
that will modernize and streamline the City’s current process. The Budgeting and Planning tools will allow 
the City departments and budget staff to reduce manual and clerical efforts during the budgeting process, 
provide a central collaborative location to develop budget numbers and evaluate scenarios, project 
workforce and personnel costs, and ultimately provide the publication of the budget document. This part of 
the OpenGov Cloud will provide the greatest efficiencies to City staff and provide powerful analytical 
capability to allow us to be forward thinking in our future strategy for the City.  
 
Performance Management and Strategic Planning: The platform will enable the City to track our 
performance metrics internally in easy to use dashboards, while providing administration and department 
heads the ability to see executive views of city performance. The platform ties together our financial and 
non-financial data from across the City’s current systems, and future systems, and ties it together in a 
single source. OpenGov will provide internal efficiencies and streamline information sharing which will 
increase data-driven decision making.  
 
Citizen Engagement: The OpenGov platform will allow us to effectively communicate our performance to 
the public, provide transparency to the community and build trust with our citizens. The platform will 
provide the ability for us to poll and survey our constituents in an online format for wide reaching feedback. 
This feedback will provide our City Council the ability to understand feedback on our performance and 
priorities from the entirety of our community. 
 
Staff has successfully negotiated a multi-year agreement with the ability to terminate the agreement if 



Council Briefing Form  Revised 05/24/2018 

budget constraints require termination.  Additionally, the agreement contains a provision to re-install the 
program with no additional fee if, after an evaluation of our current financial software, it is determined new 
financial, permitting, and other functions would better serve Shelton and its residents.  
 
 

ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
N/A 

 
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
 See attachment “OpenGov Order and Statement of Work”. 
 
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  

N/A 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  

Staff recommends Council move of approve the OpenGov software contract by making the following 
motion: “I move to accept and approve the OpenGov contract”.   



Created On: 6/6/2019
Order From Expiration: 8/14/2019 Prepared By: Andrew Kercado
Subscription Start Date: 8/15/2019 Email: akercado@opengov.com
Subscription End Date: 12/31/2020

    Customer Information
    Customer: Contact Name: Jeff Niten Billing Contact: Jeff Niten
    Bill To/Ship To: Email: jeff.niten@sheltonwa.gov Email: jeff.niten@sheltonwa.gov

Phone: 360-432-5110 Phone: 360-432-5110

    Order Details
    Billing Frequency: Annual Description: See Billing Table Below

    Payment Terms: Net Thirty (30) Days

SOFTWARE SERVICES: 
Start Date End Date Annual Term Annual Fee
8/15/2019 12/31/2019 Prorated $14,958.17 
1/1/2020 12/31/2020 1 $39,746.00 

Annual Subscription: $39,746.00
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES: 

Total

Professional Services Payment 1:  $10,000.00
Professional Services Payment 2:  $10,000.00

Billing Date Amount Due
August 15, 2019 $24,958.17
January 1, 2020 $49,746.00

OpenGov, Inc. 

Signature: Signature:

Name: Name:

Title: Title:

Date: Date:

    Order Form Legal Terms
Welcome to OpenGov! Thanks for using our Software Services. This Order Form is entered into between OpenGov, Inc., with its principal place of business at 955 Charter 
Street, Redwood City, 94063 (“OpenGov”), and you, the entity identified above (“Customer”), as of the Effective Date. This Order Form includes and incorporates the 
OpenGov Software Services Agreement ("SSA") attached, or if no such SSA is attached, the SSA available at https://opengov.com/terms-of-service and the applicable 
Statement of Work ("SOW") incorporated herein in the event Professional Services are purchased. The Order Form, SSA and SOW shall hereafter be referred to as the 
"Agreement". Unless otherwise specified above, fees for the Software Services and Professional Services shall be due and payable, in advance, on the Effective Date. By signing 
this Agreement, Customer acknowledges that it has reviewed, and agrees to be legally bound by, the OpenGov Terms and Conditions. Each party’s acceptance of this 
Agreement is conditional upon the other’s acceptance of the terms in the Agreement to the exclusion of all other terms.

City of Shelton, WA

Product / Service

Budget Builder, Workforce Planning, Communications and Reporting

Product / Service Description
OpenGov Deployment — One Time Fee (Prepaid Hours) Product configuration and setup, training, and ongoing support to help organizations deploy 

and adopt the OpenGov solutions described above above (See SOW attached).

Billing Table:

Budget Builder, Workforce Planning, Communications and Reporting

OpenGov Inc. 955 Charter Street 
Redwood City, CA 94063
United States

525 W Cota Street
Shelton, WA 98584
United States

City of Shelton, WA



 

 

Statement of Work 

City of Shelton, WA 

OpenGov Cloud 
  

Created By Mathu Allen 
SOW Creation Date 06/10/2019 

  
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

OpenGov - Statement of Work Page 1 



 

1. Objective 
 

1.1. Summary 

This Statement of Work (“SOW”) identifies services that OpenGov, Inc. (“OpenGov”) will 
perform for City of Shelton, WA (“Customer”).  This SOW is subject to, and hereby 
incorporates by reference, the terms and conditions contained in the Software 
Subscription Agreement (the “Agreement”) to which it is attached between Customer and 
OpenGov.  
 

OpenGov will enable and support the Customer to deliver on the Scope of Work outlined 
below. The objective of this Statement of Work is to define the scope, activities, roles and 
responsibilities, and timeline necessary to successfully execute this deployment project. 
This project aims to implement the OpenGov Cloud for the Customer to enable effective 
and accountable governing.  This SOW defines the scope and deliverables for a 
successful implementation of the OpenGov Cloud.  

2. Scope 

2.1. Project Scope 

The project scope includes the following services and deliverables.  Any items not 
specifically included in scope will be considered out of scope. 

OpenGov will provide Professional Services to implement the OpenGov Cloud Limited 
package. 

2.2. Deliverables 

OpenGov Cloud - Limited - Prepaid 

Functionality  Deliverables 

Chart of Accounts  ● Review and feedback of Customer's source system 
chart of accounts 

● Chart of accounts functional build and review 
● Chart of accounts configuration and peer review 
● Administrator training 

Management 
Reporting 

● 4 Standard Reports (Annual, Budget to Actuals, 
Change in Fund Balance, and Transactions) 

● 1 department-specific budget to actuals report 
● 1 custom report (stipulated by the Customer) 
● Standard saved views for each report 
● Up to 10 years of data 
● Administrator training 

OpenGov - Statement of Work Page 2 



 

● Creation of launch plan 
● End user training/presentation (depts, council, etc.) 
● Review of best practices for launch 
● Launch 

Performance 
Measures - 
Standard 

● 4 department-specific Budget to Actuals reports 
● 1 dashboard for each of the 4 departments, totalling 

to 4 dashboards 
● 6 tiles per dashboard, totalling 24 tiles 

Stories  ● Up to 2 story conceptualizing sessions 
● Up to 2 Stories 
● Administrator training 
● External communication resource packet 
● Citizen Engagement Best Practice Newsletter 
● Creation of launch plan 
● Review of best practices for launch 
● Publish the created stories 

Open Town Hall  ● Site setup and Forum theming 
● Development of 1 topic 
● List of recommended 5 topics 
● Administrator Training 
● Self Service promotional resources (sample press 

release, tips & tricks) 
● Assistance with first topic launch 

Financial 
Integration 

● Integration of budget and actuals, with transaction 
level detail up to 10 years 

● Single system connector (Incode 10) 
○ Phase 2 Switch integration to future ERP 

system. 
● Design, map, and validate data from the system. 
● Administrator training 
● Ongoing monitoring and alerts 

Budget Builder - 
Limited 

● Builder Builder setup 
● One budget (i.e. operating only) 
● Creation of up to 5 proposals 
● 2 budgeting reports (Budget to Actuals & milestones) 
● Project continues to Preparation Phase only (up to 

Kick-off to Departments) 
● Administrator training 
● Personalized User Guide 
● 1 kick off trainings to departments 
● Creation of launch plan 
● Review of best practices for launch 

OpenGov - Statement of Work Page 3 



 

● Launch 

Workforce 
Planning 

● Initial configuration based on Customer provided 
documentation and cost elements 

● 1 Workforce plan 
● Data formatting and loading 
● Validate calculations 
● 1 authorized position list report 
● 1 total compensation detail report 
● Administrator training 
● Administrator guide 

Prepaid Hours  177 

 

2.3. Assumptions 

● If a Fixed Fee engagement: The concept of Fixed Fee defines how the outlined 
deliverables are achieved. If Fixed Fee, OpenGov commits to delivering on the 
items outlined in the above Professional Services packages regardless of how 
many hours they might take.   

● If a Prepaid engagement: The concept of Prepaid Hours means that the Customer 
is purchasing a package with a set number of Professional Service hours to 
achieve the outlined deliverables. The hours are based on OpenGov’s best 
estimate given reasonable assumptions outlined in section 4.2, Project 
Responsibilities. These hours should be adequate to achieve the deliverables, 
however if they are not, the Customer will need to purchase additional hours.  

● Hours estimated above are for deployment of outlined deliverables.  Any leftover 
hours may be utilized for additional professional services activities dictated by the 
Customer. 

● For the Financial Integration,  

○ The data will be linked to the Customer’s chart of accounts.  

○ OpenGov will perform the validation for data accuracy for the Integration. 

○ OpenGov will require assistance from the Customer to understand source 
system specific customizations and configurations when building the data 
extract. 

○ If the integration is with Central Square, the Customer is responsible for 
getting data from Central Square system. 

● If there is an FTP integration of 3 .CSV datasets,  

OpenGov - Statement of Work Page 4 



 

○ The data will NOT be linked to the Customer’s chart of accounts.  

○ The Customer will perform the validation for data accuracy for the 
Integration. 

○ Customer will perform the data extraction from the source system and 
automate it to be dropped in OpenGov FTP location. 

 

3. Schedule 
OpenGov will schedule resources for this project upon signature of this SOW.  Unless 
specifically noted, the OpenGov assigned project manager (as identified below or such 
alternate designated by OpenGov, the “OpenGov Project Manager”) will work with 
Customer to develop the project schedule for all requested deliverables under this SOW. 
OpenGov reserves the right to adjust the schedule based on the availability of OpenGov 
resources and the deliverables provided by Customer. 

4. Project Organization 

4.1. Project Team 

OpenGov 

OpenGov will assign a Project Manager (the “OpenGov Project Manager”) upon execution 
of the SOW. The OpenGov Project Manager will coordinate any additional resources 
needed from OpenGov. 

Customer 

Customer will assign a project manager (the “Customer Project Manager”) and technical 
resource prior to project kick-off.  The Customer Project Manager will be the primary 
contact person at Customer and will coordinate all Customer resources needed to 
complete the project.  It is anticipated that the areas of need will be in Finance, Data 
Gathering, and the IT department. 

4.2. Project Responsibilities 

The project responsibilities for each organization are outlined below:  

OpenGov 

1. Manage delivery of in-scope items in coordination with Customer. 
2. Make available deliverables to Customer project team for review and verification. 
3. Provide relevant technical details and documentation for data requirements for 

Customer’s environment. 
4. Keep Customer Project Manager informed of project progress and communicate 

any issues relating to the project in a timely manner. 
5. Establish documentation and procedural standards for the project. 

OpenGov - Statement of Work Page 5 



 

6. Review and Administer project change control, as described in Section 5, Change 
Control Procedures. 

7. Ensure that all meetings and training sessions are attended by OpenGov                     
personnel, as scheduled. 

8. Budget Builder files are exported as .xlsx. OpenGov may assist in formatting that                         
file, but cannot convert files to any other file types 

Customer 

1. Make available a representative to serve as the primary contact for OpenGov 
Project Manager to coordinate project activities. 

2. Make available appropriate representatives with the authority to review and 
approve deliverables produced during the project. 

3. Make available appropriate Subject Matter Experts (SME) to support the project 
needs, test integrations and provide Customer environment specific technical 
details. 

4. Setup firewall rules to allow incoming requests from OpenGov’s proxy over 
HTTP/HTTPS to Customer systems. 

5. Communicate any issues relating to the project to OpenGov Project Manager in a 
timely manner. 

6. Provide acceptance of deliverables and Project in a timely manner. 
7. If Integration services are purchased, Customer will be responsible for 

making any configuration changes or modifications to Financial System (ERP) 
to support integration and make available access for integration to OpenGov 
software. The Customer will be responsible for ensuring that the versions of 
Financial System (ERP) running on all environments remain the same across 
all environments. 

8. Customer will be responsible for any infrastructure required to access 
OpenGov, and will maintain relevant non-OpenGov software licenses and 
infrastructure needed for this project i.e. accounting system licenses. Please 
note, OpenGov software is optimized for Google Chrome.  

9. The Customer will be responsible for ensuring that all meetings and training                       
sessions are attended by personnel, as scheduled. 

 

4.3. Implementation Methodology 

OpenGov uses an iterative methodology, with a focus on rapid implementation of a 
configured system.  This methodology requires a degree of focus from the Customer and 
collaboration between both parties to complete work products in a timely manner. 
 

 
 

1. Initiate Phase 

OpenGov - Statement of Work Page 6 



 

a. Key Activities: Discovery, Design Sessions, Solution Document Review 
b. Key Work Products: Data Inventory, Functional Model Build, Solution 

Document 
c. Summary: The Initiate Phase is the first step of the implementation project. 

The purpose of this phase is to define the success criteria of the project, 
make design decisions based on the functional model build, and begin 
gathering data that needs to be loaded into the OpenGov platform.  At the 
end of the Phase, a Solution Document will be created that outlines how 
the solutions will be implemented. 
 

2. Configure Phase 
a. Key Activities: Application and Solution Configuration, Data Load 
b. Key Work Products: Peer Review 
c. Summary: The Configure Phase consists of application configuration, and 

solution configuration as defined in the Solution Document.  OpenGov will 
also load the data gathered in the Initiate Phase from the Customer to use 
for unit testing purposes.  The Phase ends with a Peer Review done by an 
OpenGov Subject Matter Expert to confirm that the solution follows 
OpenGov best practices. 
 

3. Validate Phase 
a. Key Activities: User Acceptance Testing, Data Confirmation 
b. Key Work Products: Test Scripts, Test Acceptance 
c. Summary: The Validate Phase starts with a review of the entire solution 

with the Customer project team to confirm that all project elements have 
been implemented.  Once that process has completed, the Customer will 
execute test scripts and validate that data is being represented accurately 
in the solution.  If any issues are found, they will be logged and the 
OpenGov team will assess the issue and resolve as needed.  The Phase 
ends with the Acceptance of test results by the Customer. 
 

4. Deploy Phase 
a. Key Activities: Administrator Training, Go Live Support, Transition to 

Customer Success Manager and Technical Support 
b. Key Work Products: Project Documentation, Project Acceptance 
c. Summary: The purpose of the Deploy phase is to complete the 

Administrator Training process, provide Go Live Support, and begin 
Transition activities to close the project.  Post Go Live Support is technical 
assistance with the project team and issue resolution for the solution 
during the two week period after Go Live.  Once this period has passed, 
the Project team will begin working on transition activities to the Customer, 
the CSM, and the Customer Technical Support Function.  The Project 

OpenGov - Statement of Work Page 7 



 

closes upon the acceptance of the project and a brief survey to provide 
feedback about the experience.  

 

5. Change Control Procedures 
No amendments, changes or other modifications to this SOW will be effective without a 
written project change order, in the form attached hereto as Appendix 1 (a “Project 
Change Order”). The Project Change Order will describe the change, the rationale for the 
change, and specify any change in the charges, estimated schedule, or other terms.  The 
terms of a mutually agreed upon Project Change Order will prevail over those of this SOW 
or any previous Project Change Orders.  Such Project Change Order may require 
additional charges, which will be set forth in the Project Change Order. 

6. Fees and Expenses 

6.1. Fees and Payment Terms 

All fees and expenses will be paid in accordance with the Order Form to which this SOW 
is attached. For any Project Change Orders or for any new Professional Services, fees will 
be mutually agreed upon provided that any hourly fees shall be based on OpenGov’s 
then-current, applicable hourly rate. Opengov’s Standard Professional Services rate for 
2019 is $185/hour. 

6.2. Travel Expenses 

All rates and fees are exclusive of work-related travel, living and other expenses. 
Customer will be billed for actual expenses as incurred. 

   

OpenGov - Statement of Work Page 8 



 

1. Appendix 1 

Project Change Order 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Customer:        

Project:        

Date 
Requested:        

Requested by:        

 

Reason for Change 

      

 

 

 

Scope of Change 

      

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Project Impact (Schedule and Cost) 

      

 

 

 

Approvals 

OpenGov    Customer   

Signature:         Signature:        

Name:         Name:        

Title:         Title:        

Date:         Date:        

 

OpenGov - Statement of Work Page 9 



OPENGOV SOFTWARE SERVICES AGREEMENT  
 

 
Rev. 2018.01_190221_Shelton 

OPENGOV SOFTWARE SERVICES AGREEMENT  
 

This Software Services Agreement (this “Agreement”) is entered into by OpenGov, Inc., a Delaware corporation 
with a principal place of business at 955 Charter Street, Redwood City, California 94063 (“OpenGov”) and the City 
of Shelton, Washington (“Customer”), as of the date of last signature below (the “Effective Date”). This Agreement 
sets forth the terms under which Customer will be permitted to use OpenGov’s hosted software services. 

1. DEFINITIONS 
 “Customer Data” means data that is provided by Customer to OpenGov pursuant to this Agreement (for 
example, by email or through Customer’s software systems of record).  
  “Documentation” means the documentation for the Software Services at the Customer Resource Center page 
found at https://opengov.zendesk.com.  

 “Feedback” means suggestions, comments, improvements, ideas, or other feedback or materials regarding 
the Software Services provided by Customer to OpenGov, including feedback provided through online developer 
community forums.  
 “Initial Term” means the initial license term specified in number of years on the Order Form, commencing on 
the Effective Date. 
 “Intellectual Property Rights” means all intellectual property rights including all past, present, and future rights 
associated with works of authorship, including exclusive exploitation rights, copyrights, and moral rights, trademark 
and trade name rights and similar rights, trade secret rights, patent rights, and any other proprietary rights in 
intellectual property of every kind and nature. 

 “Order Form” means OpenGov’s Software Services order form that: (a) specifies the Software Services 
provided by OpenGov; (b) references this Agreement; and (c) is signed by authorized representatives of both 
parties. 

 “Renewal Term” means each additional renewal period, which shall be for a period of equal duration as the 
Initial Term, for which this Agreement is extended pursuant to Section 7.2. 
2. SOFTWARE SERVICES, SUPPORT AND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

2.1 Software Services. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, OpenGov will use commercially 
reasonable efforts to perform the software services identified in the applicable Order Form entered into by OpenGov 
and Customer (“Software Services”).  
2.2 Support. Customer support is available by email to support@opengov.com or by using the chat messaging 
functionality of the Software Services, both of which are available during OpenGov’s standard business hours. 
Customer may report issues any time. However, OpenGov will address issues during business hours.  
 
2.3 Professional Services.  
 (a) If OpenGov or its authorized independent contractors provides professional services to Customer, such as 
implementation services, then these professional services will be described in a statement of work (“SOW”) agreed 
to by the parties (the “Professional Services”).  For Professional Services performed on a time and materials 
basis, any pre-paid Professional Services Fees must be utilized within one (1) year from the Effective Date.  Any 
unused pre-paid Professional Services Fees shall be forfeited.  

 (b) Unless the SOW provides otherwise, all reasonable travel expenses, pre-approved by Customer and 
incurred by OpenGov in performing the professional services will be reimbursed by Customer. Travel expenses 
include cost of coach airfare travel round trip from the individual’s location to Customer's location, reasonable hotel 
accommodations, ground transportation and meals. 

3. RESTRICTIONS AND RESPONSIBILITIES  



OPENGOV SOFTWARE SERVICES AGREEMENT  
 

 
Rev. 2018.01_190221_Shelton 

3.1 Restrictions. Customer may not use the Software Services in any manner or for any purpose other than as 
expressly permitted by the Agreement.  Customer shall not, and shall not permit or enable any third party to: (a) 
use or access any of the Software Services to build a competitive product or service; (b) modify, disassemble, 
decompile, reverse engineer or otherwise make any derivative use of the Software Services (except to the extent 
applicable laws specifically prohibit such restriction); (c) sell, license, rent, lease, assign, distribute, display, host, 
disclose, outsource, copy or otherwise commercially exploit the Software Services; (d) perform or disclose any 
benchmarking or performance testing of the Software Services; (e) remove any proprietary notices included with 
the Software Services; (f) use the Software Services in violation of applicable law; or (g) transfer any confidential 
personally identifiable information to OpenGov or the Software Services platform. For purposes of this Agreement, 
“confidential personally identifiable information” shall include social security numbers, bank and financial account 
numbers, dates of birth, Passport numbers, driver’s license numbers, and credit card numbers. 

3.1 Responsibilities. Customer shall be responsible for obtaining and maintaining computers and third party 
software systems of record (such as Customer’s ERP systems) needed to connect to, access or otherwise use the 
Software Services. Customer also shall be responsible for: (a) ensuring that such equipment is compatible with the 
Software Services, (b) maintaining the security of such equipment, user accounts, passwords and files, and (c) all 
uses of Customer user accounts by any party other than OpenGov. 

4. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS; LICENSE GRANTS; ACCESS TO CUSTOMER DATA 

4.1 Software Services. OpenGov retains all right, title, and interest in the Software Services and all Intellectual 
Property Rights in the Software Services. The look and feel of the Software Services, including any custom fonts, 
graphics and button icons, are the property of OpenGov and Customer may not copy, imitate, or use them, in whole 
or in part, without OpenGov’s prior written consent.  Subject to Customer’s obligations under this Agreement, 
OpenGov hereby grants to Customer a non-exclusive, royalty-free license during the Term to use the Software 
Services. 

4.2 Customer Data. Customer retains all right, title, and interest in the Customer Data and all Intellectual Property 
Rights therein. Customer hereby grants to OpenGov a non-exclusive, royalty-free license to, and permit its partners 
to, use, store, edit and reformat the Customer Data, and to use Customer Data for purposes of sales, marketing, 
business development, product enhancement, customer service, or for analyzing such data and publicly disclosing 
such analysis (“Insights”), provided that in all such uses Customer Data is rendered anonymous such that 
Customer is no longer identifiable.  

4.3 Access to Customer Data. Customer may download the Customer Data from the Software Services at any 
time during the Term, other than during routine software maintenance periods. OpenGov has no obligation to return 
Customer Data to Customer.  

4.4 Feedback. Customer hereby grants to OpenGov a non-exclusive, royalty-free, irrevocable, perpetual, 
worldwide license to use and incorporate into the Software Services and Documentation Customer’s Feedback. 
OpenGov will exclusively own any improvements or modifications to the Software Services and Documentation 
based on or derived from any of Customer’s Feedback including all Intellectual Property Rights in and to the 
improvements and modifications.  

5. CONFIDENTIALITY 

5.1 Each party (the “Receiving Party”) agrees not to disclose any Confidential Information of the other party (the 
“Disclosing Party”) without the Disclosing Party’s prior written consent, except as provided below. The Receiving 
Party further agrees: (a) to use and disclose the Confidential Information only in connection with this Agreement; 
and (b) to protect such Confidential Information using the measures that Receiving Party employs with respect to 
its own Confidential Information of a similar nature, but in no event with less than reasonable care. Notwithstanding 
the above, the Receiving Party may disclose Confidential Information to the extent required by law or court order, 
provided that prior written notice of such required disclosure and an opportunity to oppose or limit disclosure is 
given to the Disclosing Party.  
 
5.2 “Confidential Information" means all confidential business, technical, and financial information of the 
disclosing party that is marked as “Confidential” or an equivalent designation or that should reasonably be 



OPENGOV SOFTWARE SERVICES AGREEMENT  
 

 
Rev. 2018.01_190221_Shelton 

understood to be confidential given the nature of the information and/or the circumstances surrounding the 
disclosure (including the terms of the applicable Software Agreement). OpenGov’s Confidential Information 
includes, without limitation, the software underlying the Software Services and all Documentation.  
 
5.3 Notwithstanding the foregoing, “Confidential Information” does not include: (a) “Public Data,” which is data 
that the Customer has previously released to the public, would be required to release to the public, upon request, 
according to applicable federal, state, or local public records laws, or Customer requests OpenGov make available 
to the public in conjunction with the Software Services. Confidential Information does not include (b) information 
that has become publicly known through no breach by the receiving party; (c) information that was rightfully received 
by the Receiving Party from a third party without restriction on use or disclosure; or (d) information independently 
developed by the Receiving Party without access to the Disclosing Party’s Confidential Information.  
 
6. PAYMENT OF FEES 

6.1 Fees; Invoicing; Payment; Expenses.   

(a) Fees. The fees for the Software Services for the Initial Term and any Renewal Term (“Software Services 
Fees”) and the fees for Professional Services (“Professional Services Fees”) are set forth in the applicable Order 
Form.  Software Services Fees and Professional Services Fees shall hereafter be referred to as “Fees”. 

 
(b) Inflation Adjustment. OpenGov shall increase the Fees payable for the Software Services during any 

Renewal Term by 4% each year of the Renewal Term. 
 
(c) Invoicing and Payment. OpenGov will invoice the Customer according to the Billing Frequency listed on 

the Order Form. Customer shall pay all invoices according to the Payment Terms listed on the Order Form.   
 
(d) Travel Expenses. Unless the SOW provides otherwise, OpenGov will invoice Customer for pre-approved 

travel expenses incurred in connection with each SOW as they are incurred. Customer shall pay all such valid 
invoices within thirty (30) days of receipt of invoice. Each invoice shall include receipts for the travel expenses listed 
on the invoice. 

6.2 Credit Card Customers. If applicable, Customer will provide OpenGov with valid credit card information and 
promptly notify OpenGov of any changes necessary to charge the credit card at billing@opengov.com. Please 
update your credit card information when necessary. The provision of credit card information to OpenGov authorizes 
OpenGov to charge the credit card for all applicable Fees plus a 3% credit card processing fee. OpenGov processes 
credit card payments through a secure third party processing partner and does not take receipt of credit card 
information itself. 

6.3 Taxes. All Fees under this Agreement are exclusive of any applicable sales, value-added, use or other taxes 
(“Sales Taxes”).  Customer is solely responsible for any and all Sales Taxes, not including taxes based solely on 
OpenGov’s net income.  If any Sales Taxes related to the Fees under this Agreement are found at any time to be 
payable, the amount may be billed by OpenGov to, and shall be paid by, Customer.  If Customer fails to pay any 
Sales Taxes, then Customer will be liable for any related penalties or interest, and will indemnify OpenGov for any 
liability or expense incurred in connection with such Sales Taxes.  In the event Customer or the transactions 
contemplated by the Agreement are exempt from Sales Taxes, Customer agrees to provide OpenGov, as evidence 
of such tax exempt status, proper exemption certificates or other documentation acceptable to OpenGov. 

7.  TERM & TERMINATION  

7.1 Term. Subject to compliance with all terms and conditions, the term of this Agreement shall commence on the 
Effective Date and shall continue until the Subscription End Date specified on the Order Form (the “Initial Term”). 

7.2 Renewal. Unless either party terminates this Agreement in writing no less than thirty (30) days before the end 
of the Initial Term, this Agreement shall renew for another period of the same duration as the Initial Term (the 
“Renewal Term” and together with the Initial Term, the “Term”).  



OPENGOV SOFTWARE SERVICES AGREEMENT  
 

 
Rev. 2018.01_190221_Shelton 

7.3 Termination. If either party materially breaches any term of this Agreement and fails to cure such breach within 
thirty (30) days after notice by the non-breaching party (ten (10) days in the case of non-payment), the non-
breaching party may terminate this Agreement.   

7.4 Effect of Termination.  

(a) In General. Upon termination or expiration of this Agreement: (a) Customer shall pay in full for all Software 
Services and Professional Services performed up to and including the effective date of termination, and (b) all 
Software Services provided to Customer hereunder shall immediately terminate. 

 
(b) Deletion of Customer Data. If Customer requests deletion of its Customer Data in writing prior to the date 

of termination or expiration of this Agreement, then OpenGov will permanently and irrevocably delete Customer 
Data, excluding any Insights, stored by its cloud hosting provider within ten (10) days of the date of termination or 
expiration of this Agreement. Such request must be addressed to “OpenGov Vice President, Customer Success” 
at OpenGov’s address for notice described at Section 10. 

7.5 Survival. The following sections of this Agreement shall survive termination: Section 5 (Confidentiality), Section 
6 (Payment of Fees), Section 7.4(b) (Deletion of Customer Data), Section 8.3 (Warranty Disclaimer), Section 9 
(Limitation of Liability) and Section 10 (Miscellaneous).  

8. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES; DISCLAIMER 

8.1 By OpenGov.  

(a) General Warranty. OpenGov represents and warrants that: (i) it has all right and authority necessary to 
enter into and perform this Agreement; and (ii) the Professional Services, if any, will be performed in a professional 
and workmanlike manner in accordance with the related statement of work and generally prevailing industry 
standards. For any breach of the Professional Services warranty, Customer’s exclusive remedy and OpenGov’s 
entire liability will be the re-performance of the applicable services.  If OpenGov is unable to re-perform all such 
work as warranted, Customer will be entitled to recover all fees paid to OpenGov for the deficient work. Customer 
must make any claim under the foregoing warranty to OpenGov in writing within ninety (90) days of performance of 
such work in order to receive such warranty remedies. 

(b) Software Services Warranty. OpenGov further represents and warrants that for a period of ninety (90) 
days, the Software Services will perform in all material respects in accordance with the Documentation.  The 
foregoing warranty does not apply to any Software Services that have been used in a manner other than as set 
forth in the Documentation and authorized under this Agreement.  OpenGov does not warrant that the Software 
Services will be uninterrupted or error-free.  Any claim submitted under this Section 8.1(b) must be submitted in 
writing to OpenGov during the Term. OpenGov’s entire liability for any breach of the foregoing warranty is to repair 
or replace any nonconforming Software Services so that the affected portion of the Software Services operates as 
warranted or, if OpenGov is unable to do so, terminate the license for such Software Services and refund the pre-
paid, unused portion of the Fee for such Software Services.  

8.2 By Customer. Customer represents and warrants that (i) it has all right and authority necessary to enter into 
and perform this Agreement; and (ii) OpenGov’s use of the Customer Data pursuant to this Agreement will not 
infringe, violate or misappropriate the Intellectual Property Rights of any third party.  

8.3 Disclaimer. OPENGOV DOES NOT WARRANT THAT THE SOFTWARE SERVICES WILL BE 
UNINTERRUPTED OR ERROR FREE; NOR DOES IT MAKE ANY WARRANTY AS TO THE RESULTS THAT 
MAY BE OBTAINED FROM USE OF THE SOFTWARE SERVICES.  EXCEPT AS SET FORTH IN THIS SECTION 
8, THE SOFTWARE SERVICES ARE PROVIDED “AS IS” AND OPENGOV DISCLAIMS ALL OTHER 
WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF 
MERCHANTABILITY, TITLE, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, AND NON-INFRINGEMENT.  

9. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY  

9.1 By Type. NEITHER PARTY, NOR ITS SUPPLIERS, OFFICERS, AFFILIATES, REPRESENTATIVES, 
CONTRACTORS OR EMPLOYEES, SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE OR LIABLE WITH RESPECT TO ANY SUBJECT 
MATTER OF THIS AGREEMENT UNDER ANY CONTRACT, NEGLIGENCE, STRICT LIABILITY, OR OTHER 



OPENGOV SOFTWARE SERVICES AGREEMENT  
 

 
Rev. 2018.01_190221_Shelton 

THEORY: (A) FOR ERROR OR INTERRUPTION OF USE OR FOR LOSS OR INACCURACY OF DATA OR COST 
OF PROCUREMENT OF SUBSTITUTE GOODS OR SERVICES OR LOSS OF BUSINESS; (B) FOR ANY 
INDIRECT, EXEMPLARY, PUNITIVE, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES; OR (C) FOR 
ANY MATTER BEYOND SUCH PARTY’S REASONABLE CONTROL, EVEN IF SUCH PARTY HAS BEEN 
ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH LOSS OR DAMAGE.  

9.2 By Amount. IN NO EVENT SHALL EITHER PARTY’S AGGREGATE, CUMULATIVE LIABILITY FOR ANY 
CLAIMS ARISING OUT OF OR IN ANY WAY RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT EXCEED THE FEES PAID BY 
CUSTOMER TO OPENGOV (OR, IN THE CASE OF CUSTOMER, PAYABLE) FOR THE SOFTWARE SERVICES 
UNDER THIS AGREEMENT IN THE 12 MONTHS PRIOR TO THE ACT THAT GAVE RISE TO THE LIABILITY. 

9.3 Limitation of Liability Exclusions.  The limitations of liability set forth in Sections 9.1 and 9.2 above do not apply 
to, and each party accepts liability to the other for: (a) claims based on either party’s intentional breach of its 
obligations set forth in Section 5 (Confidentiality), (b) claims arising out of fraud or willful misconduct by either party 
and (c) either party’s unauthorized use, distribution, or disclosure of the other party’s intellectual property. 

9.4 No Limitation of Liability by Law.  Because some jurisdictions do not allow liability or damages to be limited to 
the extent set forth above, some of the above limitations may not apply to Customer.  

10. MISCELLANEOUS 

10.1 Logo Use. OpenGov shall have the right to use and display Customer’s logos and trade names for marketing 
and promotional purposes in connection with OpenGov’s website and marketing materials, subject to Customer’s 
trademark usage guidelines provided to OpenGov.  

10.2 Notice. Ordinary day-to-day operational communications may be conducted by email, live chat or telephone 
communications. However, for notices required by the Agreement (in Sections where the word “notice” appears) 
the parties must communicate more formally in a writing given by personal delivery, by pre-paid first-class mail or 
by overnight courier to the address specified in the most recent Order Form (or such other address as may be 
specified in writing in accordance with this Section). 

10.3 Anti-corruption. OpenGov has not offered or provided any bribe, kickback, illegal or improper payment, gift, or 
thing of value to any Customer personnel in connection with the Agreement, other than reasonable gifts and 
entertainment provided Customer in the ordinary course of business. If OpenGov become aware of any violation of 
the above restriction then OpenGov shall promptly notify Customer.  

10.4 Injunctive Relief.  The parties acknowledge that any breach of the confidentiality provisions or the unauthorized 
use of a party’s intellectual property may result in serious and irreparable injury to the aggrieved party for which 
damages may not adequately compensate the aggrieved party.   The parties agree, therefore, that, in addition to 
any other remedy that the aggrieved party may have, it shall be entitled to seek equitable injunctive relief without 
being required to post a bond or other surety or to prove either actual damages or that damages would be an 
inadequate remedy. 

10.5 Force Majeure. Neither party shall be held responsible or liable for any losses arising out of any delay or failure 
in performance of any part of this Agreement, other than payment obligations, due to any act of god, act of 
governmental authority, or due to war, riot, labor difficulty, failure of performance by any third-party service, utilities, 
or equipment provider, or any other cause beyond the reasonable control of the party delayed or prevented from 
performing.  

10.6 Severability; Waiver. If any provision of this Agreement is found to be unenforceable or invalid, that provision 
will be limited or eliminated to the minimum extent necessary so that this Agreement will otherwise remain in full 
force and effect and enforceable.  Any express waiver or failure to exercise promptly any right under this Agreement 
will not create a continuing waiver or any expectation of non-enforcement. There are no third-party beneficiaries to 
this Agreement. 

10.7 Assignment. Except as set forth in this Section, neither party shall assign, delegate, or otherwise transfer this 
Agreement or any of its rights or obligations to a third party without the other party's prior written consent, which 
consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned, or delayed.  Either party may assign, without such consent 
but upon written notice, its rights and obligations under this Agreement to: (i) its corporate affiliate; or (ii) any entity 



OPENGOV SOFTWARE SERVICES AGREEMENT  
 

 
Rev. 2018.01_190221_Shelton 

that acquires all or substantially all of its capital stock or its assets related to this Agreement, through purchase, 
merger, consolidation, or otherwise. Any other attempted assignment shall be void. This Agreement shall inure to 
the benefit of and bind each party’s permitted assigns and successors.  

10.8 Independent Contractors. No agency, partnership, joint venture, or employment is created as a result of this 
Agreement and neither party has any authority of any kind to bind the other party in any respect.   

10.9 Attorneys’ Fees. In any action or proceeding to enforce rights under this Agreement, each party shall bear its 
own costs including attorneys’ fees.  

10.10 Governing Law and Jurisdiction. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Washington. 
Exclusive jurisdiction for litigation of any dispute, controversy or claim arising out of or in connection with this 
Agreement shall be only in the Federal or State court with competent jurisdiction located in Mason County, 
Washington, and the parties hereby submit to the personal jurisdiction and venue therein. 

10.11 Complete Agreement. This Agreement is the complete and exclusive statement of the mutual understanding 
of the parties and supersedes and cancels all previous written and oral agreements, communications, and other 
understandings relating to the subject matter of this Agreement. No modification of this Agreement will be binding, 
unless in writing and signed by an authorized representative of each party.  

 

  Signatures   

 

Customer:           City of Shelton, Washington OPENGOV, INC. 
Signature:   Signature:   

Name:   Name:   

Title:    Title:   

Date:   Date:   

 


	1 Agenda_20190820
	2 Looking Ahead
	3 Vouchers
	4 Minutes
	5 August 20th Presentation - City of Shelton WA 8-12-19
	6 Rotating Art Briefing 082019
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	7 Art Work 082019
	8 Briefing_2019 Residential Paving Project & Award
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	9 Contract_2019 Residential Paving Project
	CITY OF SHELTON
	2019 Residential Paving Project

	Invitation to Bid
	CITY OF SHELTON
	2019 rESIDENTIAL PAVING PROJECT
	Small Works Project


	Bidder’s Checklist
	Subcontractor List
	Failure to list subcontractors who are proposed to perform the work of heating, ventilation and air conditioning, plumbing, as described in Chapter 18.106 RCW, and electrical as described in Chapter 19.28 RCW will result in your bid being nonresponsi...

	Construction Contract
	1. Owner Responsibilities. The City of Shelton, Washington, hereby agrees to retain the Contractor to perform the work to its completion in accordance with the attached plans and specifications subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement.
	2. Contractor Compliance With All Applicable Laws. The Contractor agrees to abide by all applicable laws, whether or not explicitly referenced in this Agreement, and agrees that it is Contractor’s responsibility to identify and comply with such laws. ...
	3. Proof of Registration, License, Bond. The Contractor agrees and represents that Contractor is appropriately registered, licensed, and bonded, and has provided or will provide written evidence of the same upon City request. Contractor agrees and rep...
	4. Price – Payment – Warranty of Title. The Owner agrees to pay the bid amount of $194,797.00, including sales tax, for the work specified in the bid, subject to 1-04.6 of the Standard Specifications and any change orders hereafter approved in writing...
	5. Retainage. The Contractor agrees that pursuant to RCW 60.28.011, the City will withhold up to 5% of the value of the contract (excluding sales tax), as retainage until the project is completed and receives the written “FINAL ACCEPTANCE.” The Contra...
	6. Performance and Payment Bonding. The Contractor represents that the Contractor has submitted, or submits concurrently with this Agreement, a performance bond and a payment bond for one hundred percent of the total contract price, and represents tha...
	7. Contractor Responsibilities. The Contractor shall do all work and furnish all tools, materials and equipment for the 2019 Residential Paving Project, in accordance with and as described in the proposal and the plans and specifications detailed in t...
	8. Warranty/Guarantee. The Contractor warrants that materials and equipment furnished under the Agreement will be of good quality and new, that the Work will be performed in a workmanlike manner, free from defects not inherent in the quality required ...
	9. Wage Payment - Prevailing Wage Requirements. THE CITY OF SHELTON COMPLIES WITH THE PREVAILING WAGE LAW OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON (CHAPTER 39.12 RCW) AND REQUIRES ALL CONTRACTORS TO COMPLY. Contractor shall be responsible for paying all wages in ac...
	10. Procedural and Filing Requirements – Statement of Intent to Pay Prevailing Wage; Affidavit of Wages Paid. The Contractor agrees to satisfy all related procedural and filing requirements, including but not limited to filing of Statement of Intent t...
	11. City Business License. In accordance with Shelton Municipal Code, anyone executing a contract with the City of Shelton, and their subcontractors, is subject to the licensing requirements and business and occupation tax levied under the Shelton Mun...
	12. Completion of Work. Work shall be completed within Twenty (20) working days from the project start date specified in the Notice to Proceed. “Working Days” are as defined in the Standard Specifications.

	A. Insurance Term
	B. No Limitation
	C. Minimum Scope of Insurance
	D. Minimum Amounts of Insurance
	E. City Full Availability of Contractor Limits
	F. Acceptability of Insurers
	G. Verification of Coverage
	H. Subcontractors’ Insurance
	I. Notice of Cancellation
	J. Failure to Maintain Insurance
	Certificate as to Corporate Principal
	Performance Bond
	PRINCIPAL
	By:   ______________________________________________________________________        Signature
	Printed
	Title
	SURETY

	ATTEST: (if corporation)
	Surety
	By:
	Signature
	Printed
	Title
	CITY OF SHELTON


	Payment Bond
	PRINCIPAL
	By:   ______________________________________________________________________        Signature
	Printed
	Title
	SURETY

	ATTEST: (if corporation)
	Surety
	By:
	Signature
	Printed
	CITY OF SHELTON


	Declaration of Option for Management of Statutory Retained Percentage
	Certificate of Owner’s Attorney
	General Requirements

	10 Project Award_2019 Residential Paving
	Project Award Form
	2019 Residential Paving Project


	11 Briefing_Res. No. 1150-0719 Kubota Sole Source
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	12 Resolution 1150-0719 Kubota Sole Source
	13 Kubota Sole Source Letter
	14 PO0051_Kubota_MBR Membranes
	525 W. Cota St., Shelton, WA 98584

	15 OpenGov contract brief
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	16 Shelton WA  OpenGov Order + SoW FINAL
	17 Shelton_OpenGov_Software Services Agreement_190221_190717_1233_ssw

	VENDOR NAME  ADDRESSRow1: KUBOTA Membrane USA11807 North Creek Parkway S., Suite B-109Bothell, WA 98011425-898-2858
	SHIP TO NAME  ADDRESSRow1: 1700 Fairmont Ave, Shelton WA, 98584
	PO Row1: PO0051
	PO DATERow1: 6/24/19
	REQUISTIONERRow1: Brent Armstrong
	SHIP VIARow1: 
	FOB POINTRow1: 
	TERMSRow1: 
	QTYRow1: 1
	UNITRow1: 
	DESCRIPTIONRow1: MBR plate replacement
	BARS Row1: 402-000-000-59435-6400
	UNIT PRICERow1: 181460
	TOTALRow1: 181460
	QTYRow2: 
	UNITRow2: 
	DESCRIPTIONRow2: 
	BARS Row2: 
	UNIT PRICERow2: 
	TOTALRow2: 0
	QTYRow3: 
	UNITRow3: 
	DESCRIPTIONRow3: 
	BARS Row3: 
	UNIT PRICERow3: 
	TOTALRow3: 0
	QTYRow4: 
	UNITRow4: 
	DESCRIPTIONRow4: 
	BARS Row4: 
	UNIT PRICERow4: 
	TOTALRow4: 0
	QTYRow5: 
	UNITRow5: 
	DESCRIPTIONRow5: 
	BARS Row5: 
	UNIT PRICERow5: 
	TOTALRow5: 0
	TOTALSHIPPING: 
	PURCHASE JUSTIFICATIONRow1: These are replacement membrane plates for the MBR one Tank at the MBR plant.
	TOTALSUBTOTAL: 181460
	TOTALTax 88: 15968.48
	APPROVING MANAGER: 
	TOTALTOTAL: 197428.48


